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Expanding Our Retail Network

In 2015 we opened 20 new stores and optimized the network
by closing 10 stores; we continued our expansion to 4 new
cities. By the year end M.video had 378 stores in 161 Russian
cities of presence.

©

©
' MO
(°) © (N
= % ©
@09 00 7
© ® @@ ®
O © ©
dasmsscplsitaRatistisses 0
© o ® ®
) 9 9
% Yo
d ©®

02 M.video Annual Report 2015



&] Please tap here to see all operating
results or go to page 06
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Healthy
business
model for
the further
development

Statement from President

Dear shareholders!

As you may recall the Consumer Electronics market
in Russia experienced an unusual consumer agitation
and greater demand for Electricals due to the

sharp devaluation of the Russian Rouble at the end
of 2014. Although we entered 2015 being cautious
about consumer behaviour and market perspectives,
we realized soon that the market turned out to be
more balanced than initially expected: it decreased
in total yet still reached some equilibrium while
people and Russian economy as a whole adapted to
new reality.

Once again we proved to have a healthy business
model which provides for the further development
of Omni Channel approach, granting to our
customers a seamless shopping experience, rich of
benefits from both worlds, offline retail and online
purchasing. We see nowadays that almost half of our
clients start their customer journey with M.video in
Internet: they visit our web-site to choose a product,
then finalizing a transaction and opting either for
home delivery or pick up in store. That’s why we
regard and develop our brick-and-mortar business
and e-commerce as a single eco-system. Our online
assortment adds up to our display in stores allowing
customers to surf through the thousands of
products available at the “endless shelf” in M.video.




We also noticed that our customers went more
mobile: 38% of online transactions in M.video in
2015 were accomplished via personal mobile devices
(27% via smartphones and 11% via tablets) while the
overall share of those transactions increased quite
significantly, by 40% year-on-year. We are eager to
meet our clients’ expectations and seriously invest
into the e-commerce part of the business: online
based sales grew by more than 12% in 2015 year-on
year, while its share in total revenue reached 1% — it
kept growing versus the total Consumer Electronics
market negative development. For us in M.video it
means that we're winning the battle for Internet and
becoming a powerful online player in Russia.

Last year we launched and developed an effective
price-match proposition for our customers, “The
Best Price Guarantee”. The ultimate goal of this
initiative is to educate a customer: he or she would
never overpay while shopping in M.video. The
customers have no need to leave a store or website
to compare pricing as we offer same or better price.
This initiative is particularly worthwhile for those of
customers who have registered accounts with our
widely promoted “M.video Bonus” loyalty program.

In 2015 we continued to improve our best in class
professional service approach, fully in line with
our clients’ aspirations as they regularly point out
consultancy and servicing as our key strengths.
Best service plus best price and best assortment is
a winning formula for M.video. We are committed
to reinforce all those benefits for our stakeholders
in the foreseeable future to remain the best place
where Consumer Electronics and people meet.
Simply because we do care!

Alexander Tynkovan
President of M.Video
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Omni-

channel Model
Development

Operational performance highlights

M.video is the largest
consumer electronics and
home appliance retailer

in the Russian Federation
by revenue. We opened
our first retail store in the
downtown Moscow in 1993
and as of the end of 2014
our network has grown
into a number one Russia’s
Consumer Electronics retail
business.

149,000,000

people visited M.video
stores in 2015

In 2015 M.video stores were visited

by almost 149 million people: in our
estimate each fifth customer made a
purchase as the conversion rate slightly
decreased year on year from 20% to
18.8%.

The overall number of transactions
(number of checks or number of
invoices) decreased to 27.9 million in 2015
compared to 33.7 million in 2014. Average
transaction amount (average basket

or average ticket) came up to 6,612
Russian rubles, RUB (with VAT) in 2015 as
compared to 6,078 RUB (with VAT) the
year before.

LFL transactions, average ticket and sales dynamics in 2015
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conversion rate in 2015

The average basket’s increase was mainly
explained by retail price inflation due to

the devaluation of the national currency
throughout the year.

Our like-for-like sales (LFL, same stores
sales) decreased by 12.7% in 2015. Overall
LFL sales results were impacted by the
weaker consumer traffic, especially

in the beginning of the year which

was partially compensated by the
average ticket’s increase. Moscow,

St. Petersburg and major cities continued
to outperform the deteriorating market
and looked stronger than the average.
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Operational performance highlights

(continued)

28,000,000

overall number of
transactions in 2015

Both total sales and net revenue
decreased by c.6% in 2015 compared to
2014. Most of the Company’s operational
metrics were effected by comparison to
the abnormally high base of the fourth
quarter and particularly December

2014, caused by the peaking customers’
demand due to the exchange rate
deterioration. Still throughout 2015,
except for December, the Company’s
sales remained positive although the
Russian Home Appliances and Consumer
Electronics market continued to decline.

Revenue by major categories in 2015
% (eop)

7,8%

39,4%

25,8%

24.1%

B White (LHA, SHA) B Entertainment
[ Brown (TV, Photo-Auto) [l Accessories &

B Digital (Computers, Services
Telecoms)

Source: Company data

12.5%

growth of online based
sales in 2015

We have seen noticeable changes in

the product mix in 2015. The Company
achieved significant increases in certain
categories of goods sold in 2015, primarily
in White Goods (mainly, in Large Home
Appliances): most of those goods were
purchased in a rush time of December
2014 but delivered to customers in
January 2015 and thus recorded as
revenue in 2015. The growth in Digital
products were mainly explained by an
increase in Telecom sales due to a higher
demand for smartphones. The most of
other categories demonstrated negative
dynamics in 2015 due to the weakening of
the consumers’ buying power and overall
market volumes’ decrease.

By the year end 2015 White Goods grew
from 35.7% to 39.4%, Brown Goods (which
are mainly TVs and Photo) declined

from 31.5% to 24% and Digital Goods
improved from 22.7% to 25.8% as part

of our revenue mix. The Entertainment
products and Accessories sales remained
flat with approximately 3% and 7% share
of revenue respectively.

Sales efficiency (Revenue per Full Time
Equivalent employee, FTE) improved
by 8.6% in 2015 as compared to the
previous year.

results or go to page 16

41:] Please tap here for more financial

6%

improved sales per FTE
efficiency in 2015

Our Omni-Channel approach was

very successful in 2015. Omni is the
combination of online and physical
stores under one brand that lets
customers shop anytime, anyway,
anywhere: customers choose as we are
ready and able to offer them the same
goods and the same pricing and service
in any place they want to shop. The
customer’s journey may start in the store
and move onlineg, start online and move
to the store, or stay solely online or in
the store. That’s why Internet or Online
Based Sales (OBS) exist in two types: pick
up in store and home delivery.

The pick up in store is favored by

our customers and suppliers and is

very beneficial for M.video. It is more
convenient for the customer as they do
not wait for the delivery to come. For the
suppliers it has the benefit of bringing
the client to where their products are
displayed and keeping the customer
informed about the newest gadgets and
technologies. It is good for M.video as
the clients tend to engage in impulse
buys; it also keeps M.video as top of
mind when they think about making new
purchases, especially more expensive
and more advanced products and
solutions.
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Operational performance highlights

(continued)

Online Based Sales in 2015 increased by
12.5% to over 20 billion RUB (with VAT)
as compared to 18 billion RUB (with VAT)
in 2014, ending up again in the positive
territory even in view of the high base
from the previous year. The share of
Online Based Sales reached 11% of our
total business and pick up in store sales
amounted to almost 70% of our online
operations in 2015.

Our share in the online sales of Home
Electricals in Russia reached 11% in 2015
while demonstrated an 18% growth
versus the previous year.

The customer’s journey nowadays
originates on the Internet as almost 50%
of the shoppers search for products,
pricing, reviews and feedback online
and then choose which way to purchase.
Therefore we invested heavily in the
past years in creation of unparalleled
competitive advantages of our web
engine and online catalogue. We run

a novel channel-integrated solution
based on Oracle ATG web platform.

This cutting-edge technology allows us
to improve customer’s familiarity with
M.video web site, optimize search and
browse capabilities and by the end of the
day provide Russian consumers with the
advanced digital tool integrating web
and store shopping experience.

Online Based Sales (home delivery +
pick-up) in 2013-2015
RUB million (with VAT)

2013

2014 2015

I Home Delivery B Pick-up in Store

Source: Company data
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Jb Please tap here to visit our virtual selling
space or go to www.mvideo.com

Top 10 web traffic in Russian E-commerce

million of monthly visitors

Aliexpress

OZON 92
Mmvideo [ NNENEGEGEGEGEE ;.0
Ebay 7.4
Eldorado 6.2
Wildberries 6.1

Ulmart 6.1
DNS-shop 6.0

Lamoda 55

Svyaznoy 5.4

Allin all it allows M.video to remain top
of consumers’ mind and win the battle
for traffic and site conversion. Our
virtual selling space, www.mvideo.ru
enjoys 20 million visitors monthly with
8-9 million unique monthly users,
obtaining top 3 position among Russian
leading e-commerce platforms.

As the Omni-Channel is fast becoming
the preferred model for customers
who are shopping for Consumer
Electronic products, M.video enhances
its e-commerce capabilities while
expanding the geographical footprint.

In 2015 we opened 20 new stores and
optimized the network by closing 10
stores; we continued our expansion to
4 new cities. By the year end M.video
had 378 stores in 161 Russian cities. The
number of cities with three and more
stores increased to 41, including all
biggest cities of Russia.

The selling space of M.video stores
amounted to 644,000 sg. m, while the
total space amounted to 865,000 sq. m
as of December 31st, 2015, demonstrating
a 2% increase compared to 2014 results.

Our store profile included 337 of stores
in shopping malls and 41 stand-alone
destinations. We leased 94% of stores
while owned 6% of stores.

23.8

Source: AKIT, Company data

The growth of our operations is well
supported by the existing Supply Chain
capabilities to handle growing number of
brick-and-mortar stores, online orders
and accurate home delivery.

Our Supply Chain is built around
one-level distribution model: all
purchases are done through four
Central Distribution Centers (CDC),
afterwards the products are allocated
to M.video stores and to 50 regional
delivery platforms. We support widest
assortment on the CDC level to secure
online sales and prepaid orders of any
store, if the product is not available on
the shelf.

M.video’s Supply Chain strategy

is focused on a proper inventory
management (i.e. on managing the costs
of the products’ storage and delivery)
and customers service. As it has already
been mentioned all products are
concentrated in 4 CDCs (2 in Moscow, 1in
Nizhniy Novgorod, 1in Rostov-on-Don)
in a close proximity to the «gravity
center» of our sales volume. We use
long-haul trucks as well as some railways
to transport goods to the regions and
outsource both intercity transportation
and local home deliveries enjoying
competitive rates, while improving lead
time and delivery service level.


http://www.mvideo.ru
http://www.mvideo.ru

Operational performance highlights

(continued)

M.ideo locations at December 31, 2015, stores

M.video: Number of
cities of operation Stores
Moscow 52
Saint-Petersburg 15
Nizhniy Novgorod 8
Yekaterinburg, Rostov-on-Don 7
Chelyabinsk, Krasnodar, Novosibirsk, Samara, Ufa, Volgograd 6
Kazan, Perm, Tyumen, Yaroslavl 5
Irkutsk, Krasnoyarsk, Orenburg, Saratov 4
Arkhangelsk, Astrakhan, Barnaul, Vologda, Voronezh, Makhachkala, Murmansk, Nizhnevartovsk, Novokuznetsk,

Omsk, Penza, Pyatigorsk, Saransk, Sochi, Stavropol, Surgut, Taganrog, Tambov, Tolyatti, Ulyanovsk, Zelenograd 3
Balakovo, Bryansk, Cheboksary, Cherepovets, Cherkessk, lvanovo, Izhevsk, Yoshkar-Ola, Kaluga, Kemerovo, Kirov,

Kostroma, Kursk, Lipetsk, Magnitogorsk, Nalchik, Novorossyisk, Novy Urengoi, Orel, Orsk, Ryazan, Stary Oskol,

Syktyvkar, Tomsk, Tula, Tver, Ulan-Ude, Vladimir, Vladikavkaz, Yakutsk 2

Adler, Achinsk, Almetyevsk, Anapa, Angarsk, Apatity, Arzamas, Belgorod, Berezniki, Biysk, Blagoveschensk,
Borisoglebsk, Bratsk, Chekhov, Chita, Gubkin, Derbent, Dmitrovgrad, Dmitrov, Domodedovo, Dubna, Elektrostal,
Engels, Essentuki, Zheleznogorsk, Zhukovskiy, lvanteevka, Kaliningrad, Kamyshin, Kasimov, Kislovodsk,
Khanty-Mansiysk, Kolomna, Kolpino, Krasnoturinsk, Kropotkin, Kurgan, Lazarevskoe, Lyantor, Lyubertsy,

Maykop, Mezhdurechensk, Miass, Mineralnye vody, Naberezhnye Chelny, Nadym, Nevinnomyssk, Neftekamsk,
Nefteyugansk, Nizhekamsk, Nizhniy Tagil, Novotroitsk, Novocherkassk, Noginsk, Noyabrsk, Nyagan, Obninsk,
Odintsovo, Oktyabrsky, Orekhovo-Zuevo, Pavlovo, Pervouralsk, Petrozavodsk, Podolsk, Pskov, Ramenskoye, Reutov,
Revda, Rybinsk, Salavat, Sarov, Severodvinsk, Seversk, Sergiev Posad, Serpukhov, Smolensk, Solnechnogorsk,
Sterlitamak, Stupino, Syzran, Shakhty, Shchelkovo, Shcherbinka, Tobolsk, Tuapse, Ukhta, Velikiy Novgorod,
Volgodonsk, Volzhsky, Voskresensk, Yugorsk

— d
o ﬂ;\?ﬁ o
1o
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Omni-
channel Model
Development

Market, competition

and product mix development

M.video competes with both
national and regional consumer
electronics retailers throughout
Russia, as well as against niche
specialist retailers such as computer,
telecom and photography stores.

The overall Consumer Electronics market in 2015
shrunk both in value and in volume terms based on
the overall Russian economy underperformance
and consumer confidence deterioration. Meanwhile
M.video remained the outstanding market leader
due to its superb brand awareness, focus on the
customer, strong relationship with the largest
manufactures and solid financial position. For the
full year in 2015 the Consumer Electronics market
lost 14.4% of its value; in those circumstances we
continued to take market share which increased
from 14.7% in 2014 to 16.1% by the end of 2015.

M.video reinstated its ultimate number one
position in 2015 in major categories of goods sold,
primarily in Large Home Appliances, TVs, premium
Photo-Video devices etc. Smartphones and mobile
devices in general demonstrated a material growth
in the Russian market in 2015 and became a focal
point of the Company’s business for the future. We
believe that selling a smartphone or a tablet we can
unlock additional value through offering additional
services, accessories, insurances to our customers
thus creating and supporting a single eco-system
for all connected mobile devices.

We also noticed the increased demand for the
consumer loans in 2015 as customers became more
price sensitive: credit promos (such as “0-0-12" or
“0-0-24" products) indeed drove sales though the
buying power of the Russian consumers weakened.

10 M.video Annual Report 2015

While the overall TV sets
market contracted in 2015, we
remained the biggest sellers
of TVs in Russia with a 28%
share in the total sales of
TVs. Ultra HD (4K) and Curved
Screen devices were fuelling
sales within the category.
Samsung, LG and Sony
dominated the TV market as
in the past years.

In Audio we noticed again a
growing interest for portable
audio (All-in-One and Network
Media Systems), especially

for those technologies and
solutions which allow to
playback music using various
mobile gadgets. Still effectively
M.video sold each third
acoustic system in Russia while
Sony and LG consolidated
almost 70% of the market in
the category.

The Large Home Appliances
(LHA) again demonstrated
solid performance in M.video;
we are leading the Russian
market in selling washing
machines, refrigerators and
dishwashers, with a market
share reaching 23% in the LHA
in total. In fact online sales
of the LHA in M.video grew
substantially by 50% in 2015
while the whole White Goods
market lost c.15% in value
terms. Bosch-Siemens, LG
and Whirlpool Group (Indesit,
Hotpoint-Ariston, Whirlpool)
consolidated almost half of
the market in the category.



Market, competition and product
mix development

(continued)

In Small Domestic Appliances
(SDA) M.video managed to
improve its market presence
in the category reaching

28% share of the Russian

market. We also gained 33%
market share (in value terms)
in Coffee Making devices,
which apparently became
most resilient to the negative
market trends and slackening
consumer demand.

The premium (mainly pro
and semi-pro) models of

the Digital Cameras were
top picks for the Russian
consumers in 2015. Nowadays
if you need a simple quality
or low resolution photos

to share in your blog in
Internet, you no longer buy
a digital camera as your
smartphone can do it much
better; yet the higher quality
and more artistic pictures
can be done with a DSLR or
a latest fashion mirrorless
camera from the leading
manufacturers. In 2015 we
improved our position in the
premium segment of the
Digital Cameras and Lenses
market and increased our
overall share in this category
up to the record high 22%.
Nikon, Canon and Sony
dominates this market in
Russia.

M.video sales dynamics vs. market in 9m and FY 2015

26
I 6%
9 9%
BN
CE market MVID CE market MVID
Im’15/9m’14 Im’15/9m’14 12m’15/12m’14  12m’15/12m’14

Source: GfK, Company data

Inside the world of digital
devices Telecom (mainly
smartphones, tablets
and wearable gadgets)
demonstrated the most
progress in 2015.

Smartphones broke

through into the higher
league as their usability
significantly improved:

LTE (4G)-connected and
dual-simcard devices were
expanding their audience in
the Russian market. M.video
grew its smartphones’ sales
by more than 50% in 2015 and
Samsung became the biggest
player in the category in the
local market followed by
Apple, Lenovo and Alcatel.

Sales of smart wearable
devices (primarily smart
bracelets, fitness trackers
etc) explosively grew on the
back of smartphones’ success
in the Russian market. People
tend to buy those gadgets as
gifts to friends and relatives
learning more about the
fancy new connectivity
world. The recent launches
of the mass market virtual
reality glasses (such as
Samsung Gear VR) which help
to stream youtube videos or
watch movies directly from
the smartphone also added
to the prospective build-up
of the category in market.

In portable computing
devices laptops again
continued to lose
competition to tablets and
smartphones. The gaming
PCs yet outperformed the
category and we might
expect those devices to
retain positive sales dynamics
for the future. In general
Lenovo, Asus, Acer Group
and HP remained top selling
brands in the laptop category
both in M.video and in the
total market while Apple
dominated in the higher

end or premium quality
computers. Tablets’ market in
2015 ended up 30% below the
previous year both in value
and volume, while M.video
still increased its sales

and obtained a 15% market
share. The biggest players in
the market in the category
were again Samsung, Apple,
Lenovo and Asus while
Lenovo demonstrated the
highest growth and almost
doubled its share throughout
2015.

Annual Report 2015 M.video 11



Omni-

channel Model

Development

Committing to customers, committing to our staff

FTE employee dynamics in 2014-2015
eop

2014 2015  change,

%

HQ (incl. Internet) 889 857 -3.6%
Call Center 86 68 -20.9%
Regional Admin (incl. Customer Service) 566 538 -49%
Stores 1714 13,851 -19.1%
Total Headcount FTE 18,655 15,314 -17.9%

Source: Company data
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We believe that customers’
loyalty is key to our success.
People want to visit M.video
stores because they know
they will get good advice
about products and
accessories, and can find
out about new trends. Our
staff will always be available
to give advice or offer help
about what additional items
are necessary to ensure
successful installation at
home.

In 2015 we continued to deliver on
further development of our “My Client —
My Responsibility” (MCMR) strategy. We
interact with our customers both on the
trading floor or in the Internet, but the
bulk of the professional consultancy
and assistance has been delivered via
dedicated Service Zones which are

fully functional in all of our stores. The
Service Zones specialists serve almost

4 million clients annually and help
customers who want to understand how
to use their purchase, install or upgrade
software, help to save personal data,

do some simple repairs etc. Our store
directors and sales staff were taking
accountability and treating customers as
they expect to be treated following the
Company’s widely promoted motto “We
do care”.



Committing to customers,

committing to our staff

(continued)

Our customers’ loyalty program is
called M.video Bonus and it has been
built on the basis of the Oracle Siebel
loyalty management CRM-solution.

At the end of 2015 the total number

of the program participants reached
16.3 million customers, showing a10%
increase versus 2014. We identified

that the average ticket of the program
participants was 1.7 times higher than in
the whole network and almost 60% of
the transactions were made by the loyal
M.video customers.

We also slightly redesigned our service
offering to customers in 2015. In the past
we used to sell additional or extended
warranties for the various products while
nowadays we offer dedicated service
programs for different home appliances
and gadgets. The so called “hygienic”
services provide for the home delivery
and installation of home and kitchen
goods which cannot be utilized without
an installation; those services are mostly
five times more demanded as compared
for the TVs home installation etc. As

for the digital devices which become
more and more casual for our lives and
homes, some simple help from our
assistants is still quite needful: we offer
to put protective covers on the mobile
devices’ screens or installation of some
of the home office software. People still
tend to buy those additional services

as attachments to their main purchases
and thus we benefit from having our
trained sales assistants on the floor
who explain why customers need those
services, attachments and installations.

We have also noticed that the non-cash
transactions have been becoming more
popular with the Russian consumers: the
plastic cards payments (both debit and
credit) increased to almost 40% in 2015
as compared to 34-35% level the year
before.

Our employees are part of our
competitive advantage. We place a
premium on employee recruitment and
training to build a strong, team-oriented
company culture. We provide many
different levels of training to ensure
that sales staff are knowledgeable on
our products and current trends. Our
Corporate university helps us to develop
our future store directors and section
managers; 98% candidates for those
positions have been recruited internally.
We have also set up an internship
program which have been widely
welcomed by the Russian students

and graduates; 175 of the program’s
participants got a new job in M.video.
We had also recruited some of our most
talented people from stores to take
various positions in our Moscow HQ.

We constantly work on improving of

our personnel’s efficiency and intensify
efforts on retaining best people within
our network. We proud of getting of one
the lowest employees’ turnover rates in
the Russian retail which stood at 32% in
2015. Those outstanding achievements
had been recognized by the professional
community when M.video was awarded a
prestigious industry award “HR Brand of
the Year” for 2015.

After our people, the M.video brand is
our strongest asset. That is why we do
not franchise stores, but keep direct
control through our employees. In
this way, we can ensure that we apply
universal brand standards to all our
stores, wherever they are located.
M.video brand is underpinned by our
corporate values; Honesty, Respect
for Others, Open Mind for Change and
Concern. We succeed because our staff
share these values and focus 100% on
our customers.

Based on the independent research
source M.video’s NPS (Net Promoter
Score) grows constantly and reached
68% at the end of 2015.

We constantly work on improving of our
personnel’s efficiency and intensify efforts on
retaining best people within our network.

Our outstanding achievements had been
recognized by the professional community
when M.video was awarded a prestigious
industry award “HR Brand of the Year” for 2015.

Annual Report 2015 M.video 13



Omni-

channel Model
Development

Corporate Social Responsibility

As we are the largest
Russian retail chain in the
consumer electronics and
home appliances market

by revenue, we realize

that the products we sell
make people’s life more
comfortable but may have
an unpredictable impact on
the environment.

Although our corporate colors are red
and white, we are essentially ‘green’
company and carefully assess the impact
we have on the environment. M.video
has 18,000+ employees with their own
interests, attitude and outlook on life,
but we all have one thing in common —
we dream and we want to make this
world a better place.

In 2015 we achieved remarkable progress
with our recent charity establishment
called “Beautiful Children in the
Beautiful World” which provides support
to the ill children in hospitals and helps
to protect the environment. Since the
start of this initiative the Foundation
sponsored 228 surgeries to 183 kids out
of 73 regions of Russia. Particularly in
2015 we helped to carry out 93 surgeries
to 68 children. We have also set up
donation boxes in 130 of our stores
inspiring our customers and employees
to take part in this charity initiative.

14 M.video Annual Report 2015

The Foundation’s activity was also devoted to environmental projects in
national parks of Russia. In 2015 we run 6 major projects widely supported by the
Company’s volunteers:

The “Bears’ Island” program was aimed
on researching the wild bears in the area
of Bryansk forests and so called national
wildlife reservation. The full program
description is available at http://www.
bryansky-les.ru/science-activities/
ostrov-medvedey/

The “Striped Neighbor” program was
dedicated to protect the population of
the Far East Amur tigers inhabiting the
Sikhote-Aligne national reservation.
The program description is available at
http://cnanuHb.pd

The “Restore the forests and make

way back for wild bisons” project was
implemented in the national park of
Yugra in the Kaluga region. The program
had been initiated and supported by
M.video volunteers who planted almost
10,000 new oak sprouts in the park.

The program description is available at
http://www.parkugra.ru/projects/zubry/
vosstanavlivaem_lesa.php

The “Save wild life — help national

parks” program was designated to

assist national park officials in the
Republic of Mordovia to prevent

casual damage to animals in the areas
where the reservation connects major
automotive roads, highways etc. creating
feeding points, off the road passes

etc. for the park’s inhabitants. The full
program description is available at
http://zapovednik-mordovia.ru/index.
php?option=com_content&view=article&
id=1018&lang=ru

M.video once became the first nationwide retail chain
which stopped sales of the luminescent lamps which may
be replaced with the new high-quality energy-saving
lamps and which stopped sales of CRT TV sets. We hold
various campaigns encouraging our customers to trade-up
and replace their old fashioned home appliances with the
new energy-saving models.


http://www.bryansky-les.ru/science-activities/ostrov-medvedey/
http://www.bryansky-les.ru/science-activities/ostrov-medvedey/
http://www.bryansky-les.ru/science-activities/ostrov-medvedey/
http://zapovednik-mordovia.ru/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=1018&lang=ru
http://zapovednik-mordovia.ru/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=1018&lang=ru
http://zapovednik-mordovia.ru/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=1018&lang=ru
http://сиалинь.рф
http://www.parkugra.ru/projects/zubry/vosstanavlivaem_lesa.php
http://www.parkugra.ru/projects/zubry/vosstanavlivaem_lesa.php

Corporate Social
Responsibility

(continued)

The “Trip to Birdlandia Country” at the
Sebezh wild life reserve in the Pskov
Oblast in the North West of Russia is
dedicated to preserve the population
of the migrating birds in the region.
The program description is available at
http://seb-park.ru/blogs/?page_id=159

The foundation’s support was also
given the Information Center “The
Bat’s Museum” at Samarskaya Luka
national park in the Volga region. The
program description is available at
http://www.npsamluka.ru/mbt

The best place
where people
and consumer
electronics meet

Outlook

We will continue to provide innovative
products to our customers in all our
locations and in the Internet to ensure that
they continue believe that M.video is the
best place where people and consumer
electronics meet.

Our customer centric approach will continue to be the

major priority for our management and staff designing more
sophisticated service propositions and ensuring the customer is
at heart of all our decisions.

We target to open 20 new stores in 2016 and optimize our asset
portfolio by relocating couple of stores.

The key challenges for 2016 for M.video will be in implementing
further our Omni-Channel strategy. We aim to focus on
improving the efficiency of our operations and superior cost
control as well as extending the availability of the products’
assortment for our customers in all channels, including stores
and virtual online shelf. We are also committed to secure
advantages of the price match versus the competition on the
basis of strong supplier’s relationship and ongoing collaboration
with the manufacturers. We strongly believe that because of
our brand’s superiority, solid financial position and unique
negotiation power with the key stakeholders M.video is set up to
increase further its market share.


http://seb-park.ru/blogs/?page_id=159
http://www.npsamluka.ru/mbt

Financial
Performance
Review

Financial performance highlights in 2013-2015
RUB million (without VAT)

2015 2014 2013
Net revenue 161,691 172,712 148,042
Gross profit 38,909 46,168 38,360
As % of net revenue 24.1% 26.7% 25.9%
Operating expenses 33,310 35,837 31,593
As % of net revenue 20.6% 20.7% 21.3%
Operating profit (EBIT) 5,599 10,331 6,767
As % of net revenue 3.5% 5.9% 4.6%
EBITDA 8,830 13,140 9,400
As % of net revenue 5.5% 7.6% 6.4%
Net profit 4,547 8,174 5,729
As % of net revenue 2.8% 4.7% 3.9%
Source: Company data
Revenue Gross profit

Our overall Net Revenue of 161.7 billion RUB in 2015 was
6.4% lower than in the previous year. The minor contraction
of Revenue was due to the very high comparative base

from 2014, caused by extremely high demand for Consumer
Electronic goods in December 2014 in course of the national
currency devaluation. The deterioration of the Net Revenue
in the reported year is reflected in decrease of the Number
of Transactions by 17% year-on-year while it was slightly
compensated by increase of the Average Ticket by almost
9% due to the growth of selling prices as a result of ruble
devaluation and the increase of sales in some more expensive
categories, like Large Home Appliances and Telecom.

Our Online Based Sales were again double-digit positive in 2015
and comprised almost 11% of total sales.
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Gross Profit decreased to 38.9 billion Rubles in 2015 from 46.2
billion Rubles in 2014. Gross Margin decreased by 2.6% to 24.1%
from 26.7%.

Sales mix changes were one of the most material factors
driving gross margin decline, primarily the increase in share
of Telecom as % of total Revenue; normally Gross margin in
Telecom category is generally lower than average.

The other downside factors were an overall decline in Revenue
as well as increase of credit sales in the H2 2015 and growth in
promo activities and share of promo in our sales toward the
year end.

We also saw a decrease in the volumes of bonuses received
from suppliers which reduced proportionately to the decrease
of the physical stock volumes in 2015 versus abnormally high
levels achieved in the end of 2014.



Financial Performance Review

(continued)

Selling, general and
administrative expenses

Our Selling, General and Administrative
expenses (SG&A) as % of Revenue
decreased from 21.6% in 2015 to 21.4%

in 2014 or by 71% year on year. SG&A
expenses’ reduction as % of Revenue
without Depreciation and Amortization
was even bigger, from 19.9% to 19.4%

or by 50 basis points. The reduction of
expenses in 2015 was achieved while the
Net Revenue deteriorated as compared
to the previous year.

Personnel cost decreased by 8.7% or
by almost 1 billion rubles year-on-year
mainly due to the decrease of the
average FTE (Full-Time Equivalent
employer) on a store level due to the
implementation of the “Lean Store”
project which was aimed to increase
efficiency of employment of our sales
staff. Meanwhile the overall decrease
of the in-store traffic and number of
transactions led to the reduction of the
actual working hours we paid for.

Our Lease expenses decreased by 8.6%
in 2015 or by almost 760 billion Rubles

in 2015; as % of Revenue our Lease
expenses slightly decreased from 5.1%
to 5.0%. At the same our chain grew by
10 new stores (net of closing) and by
c.2% in total space. The reduction in rent
costs was achieved mainly due to the
decline of the straight-line adjustment
of the fixed rental payments in IFRS
after in-depth analysis of our rent
agreements. In course of this analysis
the management team introduced
some improvements to existing lease
contracts and accounting methodology.

Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2014-2015

RUB million and as % of net revenue

as % of as % of

2015 revenue 2014 revenue

Payroll and related taxes 10,089 6.2% 11,048 6.4%
Lease expenses 8,054 50% 8,812 51%
Advertising & promotional expenses 3,640 23% 3923 2.3%
Utilities, maintenance & other property 2,375 14% 2,204 1.5%
operating costs 2,840 1.8% 2,815 1.6%
Warehouse services 1,489 0.9% 1,915 11%
Bank charges 1,121 0.7% 1,283 0.7%
Repairs and servicing 985 0.6% 940 0.5%
Security 880 0.5% 971 0.6%
Other SG&A 2,267 1.4% 2,721 1.6%
Subtotal 31,365 19.4% 34,428 19.9%
Depreciation & Amortization 3,231 2.0% 2,809 1.6%
Total 34,596 21.4% 37,237 21.6%

* Restated. Comparative information for the year ended

Source: Company data

31 December 2014 has been adjusted due to the change in
accounting policy with respect to accounting for leases which
was adopted by the Group in 2015 and applied retrospectively.

The reclassification of the straight-line
adjustment also led to consequent
restatement of the certain positions of
the audited Financial Statements for the
previous years, 2014 and 2013.

Our Utility expenses practically
remained unchanged both year on year
or as % of Revenue.

Advertising and marketing expenses
decreased by 283 million or by 7%
year-on-year and remained flat asa %
of Revenue. We saw some reduction

of the TV, Outdoor and Newspapers
advertising volumes due to the decrease
of the average fees; we reinvested

those savings into a bigger share of
voice in Internet promo and CRM with
no extra budget allocations. It’s worth
mentioning that the Internet advertising
is still less costly than traditional
advertising channels.
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Financial Performance Review

(continued)

Selling, general and
administrative expenses
(continued)

Warehouse services cost decreased

in 2015 by 426 million or by 22% versus
previous year and were down as % of
Revenue mainly due to the reduction
of volumes of goods processed in

our Supply Chain. Starting from 2015

we recognize expenses related to

the lease of warehouses within the
“lease expenses, net of income from
sublease” line of SG&A while we present
Maintenance and other property
operating costs within the separate line
of our SG&A. With this regard we made
certain reclassifications to the prior
period’s amounts to conform to the
presentation of the current reporting
period.

Maintenance and other property
operating cost as well as Repairs and
servicing expenses practically remained
unchanged year on year.

Bank charges decreased in 2015 by 161
million or by 13%. It was mainly explained
by the reduction of the acquiring fees
we paid to banks in 2015, which in turn
was caused by the overall decrease in
transactions due to the contraction

of Revenue. The overall non-cash
transactions remained more or less flat
year on year at approximately 50% of
Revenue.
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Security expenses decreased by 9% as
we found some efficiencies through the
reduction of the total number of security
posts.

Other SGA expenses (which include
miscellaneous items such as consulting,
travel, Head Office etc.) decreased

by 17% or by 450 billion Rubles due to
multiple cost optimization efforts which
we carried out in the past couple of
years.

The growth of Depreciation &
Amortization by 423 million was driven
by the fixed assets purchased in the
second half of 2014 and in 2015 and
addition to the intangible assets which
are our IT projects which became fully
operative during 2015.

Other operating income
and expenses

Other Operating Income (net of other
operating expenses) decreased by 114
million. We continued to see further
reduction of the consumer loan banks’
commission rates caused by the overall
contraction of this business in Russia
and declining revenue last year. Banks
consider consumer credits as high risk
assets and significantly cut their retail
presence in 2015. Yet this drop was
compensated by additional advertising
income from one of the mobile
operators for laying out its SIM-cards
and mobile plans in our stores. We
also had no material impact on the FX
loss/gain side in 2015 as compared to
previous year.

Other Income relates primarily to
Commissions from consumer loan banks,
income from suppliers who advertise

in our stores and foreign currency
purchases gains or losses while Other
Expenses are such as PP&E disposals,
charity and etc.

Net finance income

Net finance income was slightly down
in 2015: we continued to earn on short
term deposits with the Russian banks
while last year it was offset by increased
interest rates for the short term loans
we took.

Income tax expense

The effective tax rate in 2015 was 24.2%
versus 23.5% as compared to 2014. The
23%-24% of the effective tax rate is
considered as a sustainable level for our
business for the future periods.

Net profit for the year

Our net profit for 2015 is 4.5 billion
Rubles as compared to 8.4 billion Rubles
in the previous year. The decrease in net
profit can be mainly explained due to
revenue and gross profit decline which
was partially compensated by SG&A
optimization.



Financial Performance Review

(continued)

EBITDA

EBITDA was 32% lower than in 2014 while
the EBITDA margin came to 5.5% as
compared to 7.6% the year before.

Assets and liabilities

The balance sheet continues to be
quite straightforward with the Assets
dominated by Fixed Assets, Inventory
and Cash. Our Liabilities are primarily
Trade Accounts payable.

Fixed Assets are a result of the
development of our store network
and reconstruction of stores while
Intangibles are the improvements in
the IT systems. We continue to invest
in our store systems as well as OMNI
concept implementation and other IT
improvements.

Dividend history 2010-2015
RUB million

B Dividend, RUB million

O Yield, %
61%\7
0
700 '\yooi l
FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012*

* Special dividend paid (plus to annual dividend)

Our inventories should be measured
against the AP as we strive to have
low levels of Working Capital (WC) so
that neither we nor our suppliers are
investing in the WC.

Due to the extremely high demand in
December 2014 we sold more products
and as such we had our AP position
increased. In the end of 2015 our stock
volumes normalized but one should also
count for the retail price inflation which
impacted both Inventories and Accounts
Payables in the balance sheet and as
such both inflated versus 2014.

Once again the reversal of the Net

Cash Position happened due to the
differences between December 2014 and
December 2015 sales levels and as such
our cash balances on December 31, 2015
stood at almost 12 billion Rubles versus
26 billion Rubles the year before.

25.5%

FY 2013 FY 2014* FY 2015

Source: Company data

Cash flows

Cash flow from operations

The Company continues to generate
solid cash piles from its operations.
Operating cash from operations before
changes in Working Capital comprised
9.8 billion RUB in 2015 as compared to
approximately 13.6 billion RUB in 2014.
Cash generated by operations allows us
to pay healthy dividends.

Cash flow from investing activities
M.video invested almost 2.8 billion

RUB in CAPEX programs in 2015, some
35% down as compared to 2014 capital
expenditures. As in the previous year the
financing of opening new stores and our
IT system’s improvements dominated the
investments.

Cash flow from financing activities

In 2015 the net cash used in financing
activities represented the dividends paid
for the financial year of 2014 in the total
amount of 4.85 billion RUB.

&] Please tap here to see full consolidated
financial statements or go to page 28
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Corporate

Governance

Statement of the Chairman of the Board

In my first annual statement
as Chairman, | am pleased to
report on a successful year
and good progress made
against our Company’s
strategic objectives.

22 M.video Annual Report 2015

Performance for the year

It was a positive year for M.video.

We increased our market share and
successfully weathered the stormin

a challenging macro environment.
The Company effectively pursued its
strategic objectives while improved its
operational efficiency in the following
key areas: assortment mix, Omni Channel
and online, new store openings and
customer’s experience, including even
more distinguished service offer.

M.video brand remains at the top of
mind of customers in Russia and | am
excited with those plans and discussions
on the Company’s future development

| contributed to in course of my work

in the Board of Directors. | strongly
believe we will continue to deliver on
those strategic goals in 2016 and beyond
creating more value for M.video, its
shareholders, partners and vendors,
employees and of course customers. |
can assume some people will find out
more about M.video’s ultimate product
and service proposition in 2016 but |
could not imagine a Russian customer
who had not heard about our success
story or had never purchased his Home
Electronics with M.video before.

Our financial position remains very solid
with a debt-free balance sheet which
provides a stable platform for the future.

The Board

Starting from the previous AGSM in
June 2015 the Board comprised me as
the Chairman, Walter Koch, Adrian
Burleton and Alexander Prisyazhnuk as
Independent Non executive Directors,
David Hamid, Utho Creusen and Chris
Parks as Non-executive Directors,
Alexander Tynkovan and Pavel Breev as
Executive Directors.

Corporate governance

In order to ensure the compliance with
the highest standards of the corporate
governance the Board of Directors of the
Public Joint-Stock Company “M.video”
confirms its strong commitment

to these standards. PJSC “M.video”
complies with the Russian Corporate
Conduct Code and aspires to comply
with the best international standards of
corporate governance. Those standards
have been set up as a cornerstone

for the sustainable development and
operational efficiency of M.video Group
and serve as important guidelines

of our investor relations. Prior to the
IPO in the Moscow Exchange in 2007
our corporate governance had been
rigorously transformed and nowadays
we are looking forward to improve
further our governance practices and
approaches in the full accordance with
the Russian Corporate Conduct Code of
the Central Bank of Russia in order to
sustain shareholders’ value and M.video
market capitalization.



Statement of the Chairman of the Board

(continued)

M.video adheres to the following core

principles of corporate governance:

— The implementation of effective and
transparent mechanisms to protect
shareholder rights granted under
the laws of the Russian Federation,
the Charter, and other internal
documents of the Company, and the
recommended corporate governance
standards adopted in global practice;

— The Company embraces the policy of
equal treatment for all shareholders,
regardless of how many shares they
own, their nationality or jurisdiction;

— The Company is committed to ensure
shareholder rights to participate
in the Company's management via
participation in the shareholder
meetings, voting on agenda items,
prompt receipt of the information on
the Company’s operational activity, its
governing and controlling bodies;

— The Company's Board of Directors
comprises the independent directors
and has two Committees of the Board;

— Functions of the Board of Directors’
and the General Meeting of
Shareholders’ are performed by the
Corporate Secretary appointed by
and accountable to the Board of
Directors of the Company;

— The remuneration system of
remuneration for the members of the
Board of Directors, executive bodies,
and other key employees is governed
by the respective internal documents
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Today our global environment is home
to quite a few different models of
corporate governance. Depending on
its specific realities, each country forms
its own tailor-made model of corporate
governance. However, all national
systems of corporate governance

are nonetheless based on four core
corporate governance models: the
Anglo-American, continental, Japanese,
and family models. If compared, none
of these models have its obvious
advantages and therefore cannot be
treated as universally applicable. In
fact, the previous decade is actually
characterized by a convergence of
different corporate governance
approaches in almost all highly
developed countries.

Russian corporate governance
practices also do not fit cleanly into
any of these traditional models. Its
distinguishing features are determined
by the emergence of the domestic
businesses as a result of bulk
privatization and further re-allocation
of ownership, which led to a high
level of concentration and low level
of separation between ownership and
governance.

Yet in the same breath, | would say

that the corporate governance model
of M.video is closer to the continental
model characterized by a two-tier
structure: the Supervisory Board

(with the controlling functions and

the Management Board with the
executive authority), along with the
major governing body — the Meeting of
Shareholders) with certain elements of
the family model. Some experts believe
that family entities are an outdated form
of capital consolidation which cannot
maintain effective business operations.
However, according to the available
data 45% to 75% of GDP in industrially
developed countries comes directly
from family businesses’. Moreover,
family companies exist much longer
than companies with a large number of
owners.

In order to ensure the compliance with the highest
standards of the corporate governance the Board of
Directors of the Public Joint-Stock Company “M.video”
confirms its strong commitment to these standards.

1 Neubauer E. The Family Business. In Governance for sustainability/ E. Neubauer. L., 2008.
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Statement of the Chairman of the Board

(continued)

The following are the most significant
aspects of the Company's corporate
governance model and practice:

— the structure of the shareholders’
capital — 57.65% of Company
shares are controlled by a majority
shareholder whose representative is a
member of the Board of Directors and
the General Director of the Company;

— the structure of the governing bodies
and their interactions: the Company's
governing bodies are represented
by the Board of Directors and the
General Director, with the General
Meeting of Shareholders as the
highest governing body. The duties of
the Board Chairman and those of the
General Director are separated. The
Company's Board of Directors consists
of nine members, including four
independent directors who are also
chairmen of the Committees;

— the Corporate Secretary is appointed
by the Board of Directors and is fully
independent;

— the structure of the controlling
bodies, monitoring mechanism
for resolution fulfillment: an
independent Internal Audit
Department accountable to the Board
of Directors has been established in
the Company based on the decision
of the Board of Directors. The General
Meeting of shareholders annually
elects the Revision Commission. The
monitoring mechanism for resolution
fulfillment adopted by the Board of
Directors and the General Meeting of
Shareholders is implemented through
the Internal audits and inspections
carried out by the Revision
Commission, as well as through the
daily operations of the Corporate
Secretary;
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— the Company has adopted and
applies the Code of Corporate
Governance, Charter in a new edition,
Regulation on the General Meeting
of Shareholders in a new edition,
Regulation on the Board of Directors,
on the Corporate Secretary, on the
Committees of the Board of Directors,
on the Internal Audit, on the Internal
control of financial and operating
activity, on the Revision Commission,
Dividend Policy, and the Regulation
on remuneration and compensation
payable to the members of the Board
of Directors.

In addition, we should point out the
following from among the material
aspects of the corporate governance
model and practices in M.video:

— transparency: the Company informs
its investors on a regular basis about
all key events, its results, plans, and
intentions (all materials are always
available on the Company's website);

— proper consideration of shareholders’
interest: when making strategic
decisions, the Company seeks to
estimate the effect of such decisions
on all shareholders: e.g., the Company
conduct makes road shows on a
regular basis (several times a year)
to present its key achievements and
plans for the future to its investors
twice a year (when publishing IFRS
audited Financial Statements);
arranges conference calls between
the Management and investors/
analysts; regular one-to-one
meetings with the investors, both
in its Moscow headquarters and at
various Russian and international
conferences;

— availability: throughout the year,
investors and shareholders can meet
independent members of the Board
of Directors on the one-to-one basis,
i.e., without the participation of the
Company's executives, upon request.

The approach to comprehensive
self-assessment of the Company's
corporate governance quality consists
of a comparative assessment of

the conformity of each corporate
governance principle in the Company
to the recommendations of the Code of
Corporate Governance adopted by the
Bank of Russia on a four-point grading
scale and as a percent.

The Board of Directors, executive bodies,
and Corporate Secretary of the Company
ensure timely and proper information
disclosure, transparency, and the
effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems.

The following is planned as part of
further development and improvement
of the Company's corporate governance
practice throughout the upcoming year:
increase the number of independent
directors in the Board of Directors;
approve the updated risk matrix for
M.video Group; approve and implement
Authorization matrix segregating

the authorities of the Company's
governing and executive and those

of its subsidiaries and, as a possible

part thereof, attract new talent to the
M.video team.

I, as a Chairman, am fully committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and to being transparent
about our arrangements and intentions
for future improvement. | am pleased
with the progress we have made during
the year and will ensure that governance
remains at the forefront of our minds as
we move forward.

Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend a
final dividend of 20 rubles per share. If
approved by shareholders at the AGSM
on 20 June 2016, it will be paid before

5 August 2016 to shareholders on the
register on 1)uly 2016.

John Coleman
Chairman
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Governance

Audit Committee Report

Introduction

The present report is
prepared and presented
to the Board of directors
and Annual general
shareholders’ meeting
according to the approved
Regulation of the Audit

Committee of the Company.

Audit Committee is the
advisory and consultative
body of the Board of
directors established

to review the matters
which fall according to

the Regulation within

the authority of the

Audit Committee. In

its activity the Audit
Committee is governed

by the recommendations
and requirements of the
Russian regulator in the
sphere of financial markets,
requirements of the
Moscow stock exchange,
Charter of the Company,
shareholders’ resolutions
and decisions of the Board.

Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated the Audit
Committee responsibility to review

and monitor the integrity of the
financial reporting and any formal
announcements relating the Group’s
financial performance; review critical
accounting policies and financial
reporting judgments; review the Group’s
internal control systems; monitor the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function, reviewing and approving
their annual plan; complete an annual
assessment of external auditors, review
and monitor their independence,
approve the external auditors’
remuneration and terms of engagement
and make recommendations in respect
of the reappointment. The full terms of
the Audit Committee are available on the
corporate website.

Membership and Meetings

As at 1st of January 2015 and as of 31st

of December 2015 the Audit Committee
remained unchanged and comprised of
David Hamid and Alexander Prisyazhnuk
(Chairman). Mr. Prisyazhnuk is an
independent director of the Board. Mr.
Hamid is a non-executive director since
his term of independency has expired.
There were 5 (five) Audit Committee
meetings in the course of 2015: 4 — by
joint presence, 1 — by ballots and remote
presence through conference-call.
Members of the Audit Committee
attended all the meetings held in

2015. Representatives of the external
auditor (CJSC “Deloitte and Touche” —
hereinafter Deloitte), the CFO and Head
of the Internal Audit were invited to all
Audit Committee meetings held by joint
presence to ensure that the Committee
members were fully informed and
supported in carrying out their duties.
During the year the Committee members
met with the external auditors in private.

Key Matters Considered by the Audit

Committee in the reporting year

In 2015 the Audit Committee reviewed

the results of the financial statements

of the P)SC “M.video” under IFRS on

a quarterly basis as well as the audit

results. In addition at each meeting

held by joint presence Audit Committee
reviewed the Internal audit reports

on the progress of the Internal audit

plan for 2015 performance and its main

achievements. The Audit Committee
preliminary reviewed and issued
recommendations to the Board of
directors on the following matters
related to:

— the approval of the interim financial
statements under IFRS for the 1H
of 2015 FY and annual financial
statements;

— the approval Annual report of the
Company for 2015;

— the approval of the Dividend policy in
a new edition;

— the approval of the Authorization
matrix of M.video group in a new
edition;

— the approval of the list of banks
for cooperation on deposits and
corresponding limits;

— the election of the external auditor
of the Company for 2015 and amount
payable;

— the approval of the Internal audit plan
for 2015 and setting of the main KPIs

— the assessment of 2014 KPIs
achievement by the IA group

Annual Report 2015 M.video 25



Audit Committee Report

(continued)

During the reporting year the Audit
Committee reviewed the Internal audit
reports related to the store stock audit,
e-commerce: bonus rubles audit and
promo-codes, follow-up audits and put
the main tasks for the Management:

— further improvement of the treasury
control (cash collection, control over
the working capital,

— development of the report logging
the changes made in bonuses
conditions used for calculation —
the terms of KKS/BKS and of the
purchases volume,

— launch of pilot on the ongoing cycle
counts process and analyses of the
results

— implementation of proper control on
the calculation of PSP bonuses,

— implementation of proper
management reporting (develop
KPI/reporting hierarchy/unified
methodology) and control on the
one-level authorization in the
commerce

— development and implementation of
proper risk management system and
procedures

— further improvement of RAS and IFRS
reporting convergence (unification)
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The Committee applied follow-up
procedures for monitoring of the tasks’
performance by the Management.

Deloitte was recommended by the
Committee as the external auditor of
the PJSC “M.video” for 2015 and was
afterwards elected by the Company’s
shareholders at the Annual general
shareholders’ meeting held on 16th of
June, 2015. Deloitte issued the clean
opinion in respect of the FS under IFRS
of the Company for 2015. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the accounting
reports of the Company under RAS
together with the Deloitte’s opinion

and concluded that accounting reports
under RAS didn’t contradict to the
consolidated FS under IFRS taking into
account the difference in the accounting
standards and the fact that accounting
reports under RAS contain only the
operational results of the holding
company. The tax audit for the period of
2012-2013 held in 2015 resulted positively;
risk with VAT tax on supplier bonuses is
no longer classified as possible.

Based on the monitoring results over
the Deloitte’s performance, the Audit
Committee came to the conclusion
that the external audit was carried out
professionally and recommended the
Board of directors to propose the Annual
financial statements and auditor’s
opinion for the shareholders’ approval
at the Annual general shareholders’
meeting. Audit Committee Chairman
had business meetings with the top-
management of the M.video group,
representatives of Deloitte and head of
the Internal audit on a regular basis.

Services other than audit rendered by
the external auditor

In 2015 the Audit Committee approved
rendering of the consulting services by
the company comprising a group with
Deloitte on the improvement of the
management reporting, The Company
also asked the external auditor to
perform FOBO audit. Services rendered
by the company out of Deloitte’s group
had no conflict of interests.

Alexander Prisyazhnuk
Chairman of the Audit Committee



Corporate

Governance

Remuneration and Nomination

Committee Report

Introduction

The present report is
prepared and presented

to the Board of directors
and Annual general
shareholders’ meeting
according to the Regulation
of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee of
the Company. In its activity
the Committee is governed
by the recommendations and
requirements of the Code
of corporate governance,
listing rules of the Moscow
stock exchange, Charter of
the Company, shareholders’
resolutions and decisions of
the Board.

Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated the Committee
responsibility to identify qualified top-
managers and ensure that the Company
and its subsidiaries follow remuneration
policies and practices, to support the
successful recruitment, development and
retention of top-managers. The full terms
of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee are available on the corporate
website.

Membership and Meetings

For the period from the 1st of January
2015 to December 31, 2015 composition of
the Committee has changed. In June 2015
John Coleman was elected to the Board
and to the Committee after Peter Gyorffy
stepped down from the Board of directors.
As at December 31, 2015, the Committee
consisted of John Coleman, David Hamid
and Walter Koch (Chairman from June 18,
2015). Walter Koch and John Coleman are
independent non-executive directors

and David Hamid is a non-executive
director. There were 7 (seven) Committee
meetings in the course of 2015: 4 — by
joint presence, 3 - by remote presence
through conference-calls. Members of
the Committee attended all the meetings
held in 2015. CEO Alexander Tynkovan and
HR Director Natalia Maleeva participated
as guests in all meetings held. During the
year the Committee members met with
the representative of the recruitment
companies and interviewed the candidates
on the position of CFO, of CEO and new
candidate to the Board of Directors,
potentially to the position of the Audit
Committee Chair.

Key Matters Considered by the
Remuneration & Nomination Committee
in 2015

The Committee continued to focus on similar

matters as in the previous year and preliminary

reviewed and issued recommendations to the

Board of directors on the following matters

related to:

— recommendation on the induction
process for the new Chairman of the
Board

— regular review of relevant Human
Resources Performance Indicators

— review of 2014 Top management KPIs
achievements and corresponding bonus
amounts

— setting of the top-level Key Performance
Indicators for 2015

— based on the labour market analyses it
has been recommended to keep current
salary levels and not to increase total HR
Budget for 2015

— review and approval of changes into
talent pool selection and development

(annual) bonus based on key financial and
non-financial performance indicators

of M.video Group, for the long-term
incentive system to align the interests

of the CFO, (jii) criteria for performance
assessment of the CFO, recommendation
to the Board regarding the candidates on
the CFO position;

search profile definition of a new CEO

of the Company’ subsidiary (CEO),
interview and evaluation of candidates,
development and approval of (i) material
terms and conditions of employment,

(i) criteria for the fixed (@annual) salary,
the variable (@annual) bonus based on key
financial and non-financial performance
indicators of M.video Group, for the
long-term incentive system to align the
interests of the CEQ, (iii) criteria and
procedures for performance assessment
of the CEO, recommendation to the Board
regarding the candidates on the CEO
position;

search profile definition of the member to
the Board with Finance/Audit background
on the position of the Audit Committee
Chair (AC Chair), interview and evaluation
of candidates, recommendation to the
Board regarding the candidates on the AC
Chair position;

approval of the new Board compensation
scheme for 2015/2016 corporate years
approval of the Regulation on the
Remuneration and Nomination
Committee in a new edition
recommendation to the Company’
shareholders to adopt the Policy on

the Remunerations and Compensations
payable to the Board of directors of the
PJSC “M.video”

process in order to comply with the best
market practice

recommendation on early contract
termination with a top manager of
M.video Group (ex-CFO).

search profile definition of a new CFO
of M.video Group (CFO), interview and
evaluation of candidates, development
and approval of (i) material terms and
conditions of employment, (ii) criteria
for the fixed (@annual) salary, the variable

All recommendations of the Committee
have been approved by the Board of
directors

Walter Koch
Chairman of the Remuneration &
Nomination Committee
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Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present fairly
the consolidated financial position of Public Joint Stock Company “M.video” (the “Company”) and its
subsidiary (the “Group”) as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated results of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, in compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

. Properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

. Presenting information, including accounting policies, in manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

. Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the Group’s consolidated financial position and financial performance;

. Making an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:

. Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls
throughout the Group;

. Maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the consolidated financial position of
the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
comply with IFRS;

. Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with local legislation and accounting
standards of Russian Federation;

. Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and
. Detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 were approved
on 23 March 2016.

A. Tynkovan E. Sokolova
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To: Shareholders of Public Joint Stock Company “M.video”

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Public Joint Stock
Company “M.video” and its subsidiary (collectively — the “Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for 2015, and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Russian
Federal Auditing Standards and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on

the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of

the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to express
an opinion on the fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for 2015 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

23 March 2016
Moscow, Russian Federation

Andrew Sedov, Partner
(certificate no. 01-000487 dated 13 February 2012)

ZAO Deloitte & Touche CIS
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Consolidated Financial Statements

PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

31 December 31 December
31 December 2014 2013
Notes 2015 (Restated*) (Restated*)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment 6 8 880 9935 9 696
Intangible assets 7 4974 4310 3190
Deferred tax assets, net 15 3 556 3084 2503
Other non-current assets 8 649 636 707
Total non-current assets 18 059 17 965 16 096
CURRENT ASSETS:
Inventories 9 43 913 35434 34 215
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 10 10 161 10 870 9151
Income tax receivable 21 15 18
Other taxes receivable 11 2 864 1100 1436
Cash and cash equivalents 12 11779 26 122 11 542
Short-term investments 13 800 - -
Other current assets 10 12 21
Total current assets 69 548 73 553 56 383
TOTAL ASSETS 87 607 91 518 72 479
EQUITY:
Share capital 14 1798 1798 1798
Additional paid-in capital 14 4576 4 576 4 576
Treasury shares 14 (52) (328) (328)
Retained earnings 7673 8 302 8 155
Total equity 13 995 14 348 14 201
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Provisions 5 5 10
Other liabilities 26 67 - -
Total non-current liabilities 72 5 10
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Trade accounts payable 58 162 57 428 47 159
Other payables and accrued expenses 16 6 546 6 328 4213
Advances received 17 2 069 4422 1133
Income tax payable 846 2166 556
Other taxes payable 18 834 1388 506
Deferred revenue 19 4801 4 969 4 555
Provisions 282 464 146
Total current liabilities 73 540 77 165 58 268
Total liabilities 73 612 77170 58 278
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 87 607 91 518 72 479

* Comparative information as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 has been adjusted due to the change in accounting policy with respect
to accounting for leases which was adopted by the Group in 2015 and applied retrospectively (Note 2).

The Notes on pages 9-51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The independent auditor’s
report is presented on pages 2 to 3.

Signed on 23 March 2016 by:

A. Tynkovan E. Sokolova
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Financial Statements

PULIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles, except earnings per share)

2014
Notes 2015 (Restated*)

REVENUE 20 161 691 172712
COST OF SALES (122 782) (126 544)
GROSS PROFIT 38909 46 168
Selling, general and administrative expenses 21 (34 596) (37 237)
Other operating income 22 1411 2 001
Other operating expenses 23 (125) (601)
OPERATING PROFIT 5599 10 331
Finance income 24 884 436
Finance expenses 24 (488) (68)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 5995 10 699
Income tax expense 15 (1448) (2 525)
NET PROFIT for the year, being

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME for the year 4 547 8174
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (in Russian Rubles) 25 25,37 45,85
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (in Russian Rubles) 25 25,33 45,53

* Comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2014 has been adjusted due to the change in accounting policy with
respect to accounting for leases which was adopted by the Group in 2015 and applied retrospectively (Note 2).

The Notes on pages 9-51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The independent auditor’s
report is presented on pages 2 to 3.

Signed on 23 March 2016 by:

A. Tynkovan E. Sokolova
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Financial Statements

PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

Additional
paid-in Treasury Retained
Notes Share capital capital shares earnings Total

Balance as at 31 December 2013

(as previously reported) 1798 4 576 (328) 7 887 13933
Retrospective application of a

change in accounting policy 2 - - - 268 268
Balance as at 31 December 2013

(as restated) 1798 4 576 (328) 8 155 14 201
Recognition of share-based

payment for ordinary shares

previously issued 26 - - - 1 1
Dividends declared - - - (8 028) (8 028)
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 8174 8174
Balance as at 31 December 2014 1798 4 576 (328) 8 302 14 348
Recognition of share-based

payment for ordinary shares

previously issued 26 - - - 28 28
Exercise of options granted

as share-based payment 26 - - 276 (356) (80)
Dividends declared 14 - - - (4 848) (4 848)
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 4 547 4 547
Balance as at 31 December 2015 1798 4 576 (52) 7673 13 995

The Notes on pages 9-51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The independent auditor's

report is presented on pages 2 to 3.

Signed on 23 March 2016 by:

A. Tynkovan
Chief Executive Officer

E. Sokolova

Chief Financial Officer
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PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

2014
Notes 2015 (Restated*)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit for the year 4 547 8174
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense 15 1448 2525
Depreciation, amortization and impairment loss 21 3 231 2809
Change in allowance for doubtful advances paid for rent,
accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 8,10 161 51
Equity-settled share-based payment 26 28 1
Change in allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventories and inventory losses, net of surpluses 1098 (371)
Interest income on bank deposits 24 (884) (436)
Other non-cash reconciling items, net 142 506
Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital 9771 13 259
Increase in inventories (9471) (823)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 450 (1651)
(Increase)/decrease in other taxes receivable (1 753) 316
Increase in trade accounts payable 734 10 269
Increase in other payables and accrued expenses 150 2242
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred revenue (168) 414
Increase in other liabilities 67 -
(Decrease)/increase in advances received (2 353) 3289
(Decrease)/increase in other taxes payable (554) 882
Other changes in working capital, net 19 (35)
Cash (used in)/generated by operations (3108) 28 162
Income tax paid (3 246) (1493)
Interest paid (191) (68)
Net cash (used in)/generated by operating activities (6 545) 26 601
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PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

Notes
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Placement of deposits with original maturity of more than 90 days 24
Withdrawal of deposits with original maturity of more than 90 days 24

Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid
Proceeds from short-term loans and borrowings
Repayment of short-term loans and borrowings

Net cash used in financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, at the beginning of the year
Impact of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, at the end of the year

2014

2015 (Restated*)
(1391) (2631)
1 140
(1 449) (1787)
(2 287) (79)
1190 77
977 322
(2 959) (3 958)
(4 848) (8 028)
6 630 4615
(6 630) (4 615)
(4 848) (8 028)
(14 352) 14 615
26 122 11 542
9 (35)
11779 26 122

* Comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2014 has been adjusted due to the change in accounting policy with

respect to accounting for leases which was adopted by the Group in 2015 and applied retrospectively (Note 2).

The Notes on pages 9-51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The independent auditor’s

report is presented on pages 2 to 3.

Signed on 23 March 2016 by:

A. Tynkovan E. Sokolova

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of Public Joint Stock Company “M.video” (the “Company”) and
its subsidiary (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 were authorized for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 23 March 2016.

The Company and its subsidiary (see the table below) are incorporated in the Russian Federation.
The Company is registered at: 40/12, building 20, Nizhnaya Krasnoselskaya Street, Moscow, 105066,
Russian Federation.

LLC “Company “M.video” was incorporated on 3 December 2003. On 25 September 2006 the Company
was reorganized from a Limited Liability Company to an Open Joint Stock Company. Following the initial
public offering in November 2007, the Company’s ordinary shares were admitted to trading on MICEX
stock exchange (Moscow Exchange) in the Russian Federation. On 2 July 2015 the Company was
reregistered as a Public Joint Stock Company “M.video”.

The Group is the operator of a chain of consumer electronic outlets and online internet stores operating
in the Russian Federation. The Group specializes in the sale of TV, audio, video, Hi-Fi, home appliances
and digital equipment, as well as related services. The Group comprises a chain of owned and leased
stores (378 stores as at 31 December 2015; 368 stores as at 31 December 2014) and online internet
stores in Moscow and 67 other cities (52 other cities as at 31 December 2014).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include assets, liabilities and result of operations
of the Company and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 (the below subsidiary operates in
the Russian Federation):

Proportion of Proportion of
ownership ownership
interest and interest and
voting power voting power
held, % held, %
Nature of 31 December 31 December
Name of subsidiary business 2015 2014
LLC “M.video Management” Retailing 100 100

Shareholders

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the registered shareholders of the Company and their respective
ownership and voting interests were as follows:

2015 2014
“SVECE Limited” 57,6755% 57,6755%
Various shareholders 42,3245% 42,3245%
Total 100% 100%

Ultimate Shareholders

“SVECE Limited” controls 57,6755% of the voting and ordinary shares of the Company.

“SVECE Limited” is incorporated in Cyprus and is the ultimate parent entity of the Company.

At 31 December 2015, the Company does not have a single ultimate controlling party, however the
most significant shareholders Mr. Alexander Tynkovan, Mr. Pavel Breev, citizens of the Russian
Federation, and Mr. Michael Tynkovan, citizen of the Slovak Republic, could exercise control over
“SVECE Limited” were they to act in concert.
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PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
valuation of financial instruments in accordance with International Accounting Standard 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (“IAS 39”) and International Financial Reporting Standard
13 “Fair value measurement” (“IFRS 13”) and valuation of items of property, plant and equipment
measured at fair value which was used as deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as at
the date of transition to IFRS on 1 January 2006.

All companies within the Group maintain their accounting records in accordance with Russian
Accounting Standards (“RAS”). RAS differ substantially from those standards generally accepted
under IFRS. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared based on
the Russian statutory accounting records, reflect those adjustments necessary for such consolidated
financial statements to be presented in accordance with IFRS.

Functional and presentation currency — The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Russian Rubles (“RUB”), which is the functional and presentation currency of each company of the
Group. Functional currency for each company of the Group has been determined as the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company operates.

Adoption of New Standards and Interpretations

The accounting policies applied by the Group are consistent with those of the previous financial year,
except for the adoption of the new standards and interpretations effective as at 1 January 2015 and
the change in accounting policy discussed below.

The Group has adopted the following new and amended standards and interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB in these annual consolidated financial statements:

. Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” — Pension Plans with Fixed Payments: Employee
Contribution;

o Annual Improvements cycle 2010-2012;
. Annual Improvements cycle 2011-2013.

The adoption of these standards and interpretations has not had a significant impact on consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Reclassifications

In 2015 the Group changed presentation of certain items of income and expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in order to enhance true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Particularly, starting 1 January 2015 the Group
classifies income from delivery of goods to customers within “Revenue” and cost of delivery of goods
to customers within “Cost of sales”.
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PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(in millions of Russian Rubles)

With this regards the Group made the following reclassifications to the prior year amounts to conform
to the presentation of the current reporting period:

As previously After

reported Reclassification reclassification Comments

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2014

* reclassification of income
from delivery of goods to

Revenue 172187 525 172712 B
customers in the amount of
525 to “Revenue” from
Other operating income 2 526 (525) 2001 “Other operating income”
* reclassification of cost of
delivery of goods to
Cost of sales (125 587) (957) (126 544) customers in the amount of
957 to “Cost of sales” from
Selling, general and “Selling, general and
administrative expenses (38 425) 957 (37 468) administrative expenses”

Change in Accounting Policy

Some of the Group’s operating lease agreements stipulate that regular lease payments fixed in those
contracts include fees for the use of premises as well as reimbursement of maintenance costs
incurred by the lessor. In 2015 the Group has opted to change its accounting policy on recognition of
expenses on such contracts on a straight-line basis. Previously, the calculation of expense to be
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term was based on the amount of lease payments
specified in the agreements, thus including both components: fees for the use of premises and
reimbursement of maintenance costs incurred by the lessor. In accordance with accounting policy
adopted in 2015 the Group applies straight-line principle for recognition of expense only for the
portion of lease payments that relates for the use of premises and that is calculated by management
for each of the lease agreements. The Group’s management believes that the new accounting policy
enhances true and fair presentation of the Group’ financial position.

The comparative information has been adjusted since the new accounting policy was applied by the
Group retrospectively. The effect of retrospective application as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 and
for the year ended 31 December 2014 was as follows:

Effect of change
Consolidated statement of financial position As previously in accounting
as at 31 December 2013 reported policy Restated
Deferred tax assets, net 2570 (67) 2503
Retained earnings 7 887 268 8 155
Other payables and accrued expenses 4548 (335) 4213
Effect of change

Consolidated statement of financial position As previously in accounting

as at 31 December 2014 reported policy Restated

Deferred tax assets, net 3197 (113) 3084
Retained earnings 7 849 453 8 302
Other payables and accrued expenses 6 894 (566) 6 328
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PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and Effect of change
other comprehensive income As previously in accounting
for the year ended 31 December 2014 reported policy Restated
Selling, general and administrative expenses™ (37 468) 231 (37 237)
Income tax expense (2479) (46) (2 525)
Net profit for the year, being

total comprehensive income for the year 7 989 185 8174
Basic earnings per share 44,82 1,03 45,85
Diluted earnings per share 44,50 1,03 45,53

* after the reclassification disclosed above

Effect of change
Consolidated statement of cash flows As previously in accounting
for the year ended 31 December 2014 reported policy Restated
Net profit for the year 7 989 185 8174
Income tax expense 2479 46 2525
Increase in other payables and accrued expenses 2473 (231) 2 242

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation — The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements
of the Company and entity controlled by the Company (its subsidiary). Control is achieved when the
Company:

o Has power over the investee;
o Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
. Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continues to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Operating segments — Segment reporting is presented on the basis of management’s perspective
and relates to the parts of the Group that are defined as operating segments. Operating segments
are identified on the basis of internal reports to the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”).
These internal reports are prepared on the same basis as these consolidated financial statements.

Based on the current management structure the Group has identified one operating segment —
the sale of consumer electronics through its retail and internet stores.

Going concern — These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

Foreign currencies — The individual financial statements of each Group’s entity are presented in the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date when the most recent fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY “M.VIDEO”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in millions of Russian Rubles)

Exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on loans and
borrowings are reported as part of finance cost, while exchange differences related to operating items
are included into other operating income and expenses.

Property, plant and equipment — Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Deemed cost of the items of property,
plant and equipment existing as at 1 January 2006, the date of transition to IFRS, was determined on
the basis of fair values estimated by independent appraisers as allowed by the provisions of IFRS 1.
Fair value of properties was determined with reference to market prices, while fair value of the other
items, including the Group’s trade equipment, was predominantly based on the estimates of depreciated
replacement costs. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Maijor replacements or modernizations of property, plant and equipment are capitalized and depreciated
over their estimated useful lives. All other repair and maintenance expenditure is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the financial period
in which it is incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:

Buildings 20-30 years
Leasehold improvements 7 years
Trade equipment 3-5 years
Security equipment 3 years
Other fixed assets 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of useful life or the related lease term.

Trade equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life specified above unless there is a plan
to fully renovate the store prior to reaching the predetermined estimated useful life. In this situation,
the net book value of trade equipment will be depreciated over the remaining estimated useful life
being the period of time up to the planned renovation works.

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. Where there are indicators that an asset’s or cash generating unit’'s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down to its recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Construction in progress comprises the cost of equipment in the process of installation and other costs
directly relating to the construction of property, plant and equipment including an appropriate allocation
of directly attributable variable overheads that are incurred in construction. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as for other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Intangible assets — Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over
estimated useful lives of these intangible assets. The estimated useful life and amortization method are
reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives per class of intangible assets are as follows:

Software licenses, development and web site 1-10 years
Trademarks 5-10 years
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Internally-generated intangible assets — An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognized if, and only if,
all of the following have been demonstrated:

. The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale;

o The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
. The ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
. How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

. The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

. The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized, development expenditure is recognized in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it

is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Impairment of non-current assets — At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-current assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value
less cost to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using

a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transactions are taken into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiplies, quoted share price if available or other
fair value indicators.

For non-current assets the CGU is deemed to be each group of stores located in one city. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which

a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Impairment test is performed by the Group annually for those intangible assets that are not yet
available for use at the year-end by comparing their carrying amount with the recoverable amount
calculated as discussed above. If the carrying amount of such assets does not yet include all the
cash outflows to be incurred before they are ready for use, the estimate of future cash outflow
includes an estimate of any further cash outflow that is expected to be incurred before the asset is
ready for use.
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Income tax — Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit

as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investment
in subsidiary as the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred income tax for the period

Current and deferred income tax are recognized as an expense or income in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, except when they relate to items credited
or debited directly to equity (in which case the tax is also recognized directly in equity) or where they
arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a business combination,
the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or in determining the excess of the acquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost.

Fair value of financial instruments — The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets at each reporting date is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations, without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments not traded in an active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques, which include using recent
arm’s length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is
substantially the same, a discounted cash flow analysis, or other valuation models.
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The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

. Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

. Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly;

. Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data.

Financial assets — Investments are recognized and derecognized on a trade date, where the purchase
or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss,
which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets that the Group holds on its consolidated statement of financial position at

31 December 2015 are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as ‘at fair
value through profit or loss’ (‘FVTPL”) and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets as at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

. It is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

. Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or

. The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets as at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The net gain or loss
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Fair value is determined in the
manner described above.
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Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment losses and bad debts.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables
when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those as at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For financial assets carried at amortized cost,
the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade and other accounts receivable where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When trade and other accounts receivable are uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all

the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for
the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded as the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

o The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

d The amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities as at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities as at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future; or

. It is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

. Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

d The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities as at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability. Fair value is determined
in the manner described above.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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Share-based payments — Equity-settled share based payments to employees are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest. At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,

is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over
the remaining vesting period with a corresponding adjustment to retained earnings.

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense recognized
is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met.

An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction
awards are treated equally.

Cash-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at fair value. The fair value of

the cash-settled share-based payments is determined at each reporting date and is expensed on

a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest and the fair value of these instruments. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income during the remaining vesting period with a corresponding
adjustment of the Group’s liabilities.

Value added tax — Value added tax (“VAT”) related to sales is payable to tax authorities on the earliest
of (a) cash received from customers in advance or (b) transfer of the goods or rendering services to
customers. Input VAT is generally recoverable against sales VAT upon receipt of the VAT invoice.
Input VAT on construction in progress can be reclaimed on receipt of VAT invoices for the particular
stage of work performed or, if the construction in progress project cannot be broken down into
stages, on receipt of VAT invoices upon completion of the contracted work.

VAT is generally allowed to be settled on a net basis. VAT related to sales and purchases which
have not been settled at the balance sheet date is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position on a gross basis and disclosed separately as an asset and liability. Where a provision has
been made for the impairment of receivables, the impairment loss is recorded for the gross amount of
the debtor, including VAT.

At each reporting date the Group reviews outstanding balance of input VAT for recoverability and
creates impairment provision for the amounts which recoverability is doubtful.

Inventories — Inventories are recorded at the lower of average cost or net realizable value. In-bound
freight related costs from the suppliers incurred to deliver inventories to the Group’s central distribution
warehouse are included as part of the net cost of merchandise inventories. Certain supplier bonuses
that are not reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs to promote a supplier’s
products are also included in the cost of inventory. Other costs associated with storing and transporting
merchandise inventories from the central distribution warehouse to the retail stores are expensed

as incurred and included either in “Cost of sales” (costs of transporting merchandise from central
distribution warehouses to the retail stores) or in “Selling, general and administrative expenses”

(all other costs).

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Cash and cash equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks, in transit and on
hand in stores and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, and credit
card payments received within 24 hours of the next working day.

Borrowing costs — The borrowing costs are capitalized by the Group as part of the cost of the asset
when the costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of a qualifying asset. The Group
defines qualifying assets as leasehold improvements and other assets acquired in connection with
the new store openings which generally take three months or longer to become operational.

Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Provisions — Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Warranties

Warranties are generally covered by the brand owner of supplied goods directly or through their
authorized agents in the Russian Federation.

When a supplier is unable to offer warranty services for their products in Russia, the Group makes
a provision for warranty costs. These costs are recognized at the date of sale of the relevant products
at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s obligations.

Revenue recognition — Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates, discounts and VAT. Inter-
company revenue is eliminated. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

. The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

. The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o The amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and
. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized at the point of sale or, where later, upon delivery to the
customer and is stated net of returns.
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Loyalty programs

The Group operates customer loyalty programs “M.video Bonus” and “Co-brand”, which allow
customers to accumulate points when they purchase goods in the Group’s retail stores. The points
can then be redeemed as a payment for merchandise, subject to a minimum number of points being
obtained. Proceeds from sales to members of the loyalty programs are allocated between the loyalty
points and the other components of the sale. The consideration allocated to the loyalty points is
measured by reference to their fair value, i.e. the amount for which the loyalty points could be sold
separately. This amount is deferred and recognized as revenue when the points are redeemed.
Expected breakage is recognized as revenue at the time of initial sale as it is excluded from the
amount allocated to loyalty points.

Revenue from services

Revenue from services is recognized in the period in which the services have been rendered and the
following conditions are satisfied:

o The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group;
. The stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably; and

. The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Additional service agreements

The Group sells additional service agreements (“ASA”) and has an obligation to the buyer to perform
services throughout the period of the contract. Revenue from the ASA is deferred and recognized on
a straight-line basis over the term of the service contract. Related costs, such as cost of services
performed under the contract, general and administrative expenses and advertising expenses are
charged to expense as incurred.

Agent fees

The Group recognizes as revenue any sales performed as an agent at net amounts (i.e. at the amount
of commission, owed to the Group). Such fees include sales of goods, telephone and television service
contracts and other services fees.

Gift cards

The Group sells gift cards to its customers in its retail stores and through its website. The gift cards
have an expiration date and are required to be used during specified periods of time. The Group
recognizes income from gift cards at the earlier date when: (i) the gift card is redeemed by the
customer; or (ii) when the gift cards expire.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.
Interest income is included in the net finance cost in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Cost of sales — Cost of sales include the cost of inventories and services acquired from suppliers,

freight in, costs related to transporting inventories from distribution centers to stores, allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory, inventory losses and supplier bonuses.
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Supplier bonuses — The Group receives supplier bonuses in the form of cash payments or allowances
for various programs, primarily volume incentives and reimbursements for specific programs such as
markdowns, margin protection and advertising. The Group has agreements in place with each vendor
setting forth the specific conditions for each allowance or payment. Supplier bonuses which are earned
by achieving certain volume purchases are recorded when it is reasonably assured the Group will
reach these volumes.

Depending on the arrangement, the Group either recognizes the allowance as a reduction of current
costs or defers the payment over the period the related merchandise is sold. If the payment is a
reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred to promote a supplier’s products,
it is offset against those related costs; otherwise, it is treated as a reduction to the cost of merchandise.
Substantially all payments from suppliers are accounted for as a reduction of inventory purchases and
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the
related inventory is sold.

Markdown reimbursements related to merchandise that has been sold are negotiated and documented
by the Group’s buying teams and are credited directly to cost of goods sold in the period received.
Vendor allowances received prior to merchandise being sold are deferred and recognized as

a reduction of merchandise cost.

Leases — The Group has not entered into any finance leases, although it does have a significant
number of operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. If reimbursement of
utility expenses is included in the fixed lease payments, the amount to be reimbursed and expensed
in the reporting period needs to be calculated.

Any benefits received from the landlord as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are spread
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Sublease income and lease expenses are presented on
the net basis.

Pre-opening expenses — Expenses incurred in the process of opening new stores which do not
meet capitalization criteria under IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” are expensed as incurred.
Such expenses include rent, utilities and other operating expenses.

Employee benefits — Remuneration to employees in respect of services rendered during the reporting
period is recognized as an expense in that reporting period. The Group contributes to the Russian
Federation state pension, medical and social insurance funds on behalf of all its current employees (a
defined contribution plan) by paying social security contributions (“SSC”). The Group’s only obligation is
to pay contributions to the funds as they fall due. As such, the Group has no legal obligation to pay and
does not guarantee any future benefits to its Russian employees. Any related expenses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become due. Contribution for each employee varies from 15,1% to 30% depending on the annual
gross remuneration of each employee. The Group does not operate any employer sponsored
pension plans.

Dividends — Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they have been declared
by the shareholders in a general meeting and become legally payable. Dividends are disclosed when
they are proposed before the reporting date or proposed or declared after the reporting date but before
the financial statements are authorized for issue.

Treasury shares — If the Group reacquires its own equity instruments, those instruments

(“treasury shares”) are recognized as a deduction to equity at cost, being the consideration paid to
reacquire the shares. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Such treasury shares may be acquired and held by
the Company or by the subsidiary of the Company.
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4,

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS BY IASB AND IFRIC IN ISSUE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised standards issued by IASB and IFRIC, but
not yet effective:

o IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments’”;
o IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers’”;
o IFRS 16 “Leases”z;

. Amendments to IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations3;

o Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” — Disclosure InitiativeS;

. Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” —
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization®;

o Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Ventures;

o Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities” and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”: Investment
Entities — Applying the Consolidation Excepti0n3;

. IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts™;

. Amendments to IAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements” — Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®;

. Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle3.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measuremen
of financial assets. In October 2010 the amendments and new requirements related to the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and derecognition of financial instruments were introduced to
the IFRS 9. In November 2013 new requirements related to hedge accounting were issued.

The renewed version of the standard was issued in July 2014. The main changes relate to:

a) methodology of calculation of impairment of financial assets; b) not significant amendments related
to the classification and measurement due to addition of new category of the financial instruments
“fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) for the particular type of debt instruments.

The key requirements of IFRS 9 are:

. Classification and measurement of financial assets. All recognized financial assets that are
within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required
to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognized in profit or loss.

! Applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier adoption permitted.
2 Applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier adoption permitted.
3 Applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier adoption permitted.
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. Classification and measurement of financial liabilities. With regard to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

. Impairment. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognized.

. Hedge accounting. The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of
hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

IFRS 9 is applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier adoption
permitted. Depending on the chosen approach to applying IFRS 9, the transition can involve one or
more than one date of initial application for different requirements.

The management of the Group anticipates that the application of IFRS 9 in the future may have a
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 until a detailed
review has been completed.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014 IFRS 15 was released establishing a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. Specifically, the standard
provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:

. Identify the contract with the customer

. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Determine the transaction price

. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.
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Under IFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when or as a performance obligation is satisfied,

i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The management of the Group anticipates that the application of IFRS 15 in the future may have
a significant impact on amount and timing of revenue recognition. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until a detailed review has been completed.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases brings most leases on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating
the distinction between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largely
unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained.

Under IFRS 16 a lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset and the lease liability. The right-of-use asset
is treated similarly to other non-financial assets and depreciated accordingly and the liability accrues
interest. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease, or if that cannot be readily
determined, the lessee shall use their incremental borrowing rate.

As with IAS 17, lessors classify leases as operating of finance in nature. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. Otherwise, a lease is classified as an operating lease. For finance leases a lessor
recognizes finance income over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate
of return on the net investment. A lessor recognizes operating lease payments as income on a
straight-line basis or, if more representative of the pattern in which benefit from use of the underlying
asset is diminished, another systematic basis.

The management of the Group anticipates that the application of IFRS 16 in the future may have a
significant impact on the amount of assets and liabilities due to recognition of all leases for contracts
where the Group is a lessee. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of IFRS 16 until a detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to IAS 1 provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality in practice.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
management of the Group does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-based depreciation method for
items of property, plant and equipment. The amendments to IAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortization of an intangible asset. This presumption can
only be rebutted when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue, or when it can be
demonstrated that revenue and consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
Group applies straight-line method for amortization of intangible assets and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment. The management considers straight-line method as the most reliable to reflect
the use of economic benefits embedded in the relevant assets and does not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 in the future may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state
that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognized in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that
is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognized in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
management of the Group anticipates that the application of the amendments in the future may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, if such transactions occur.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity, even if the investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value in accordance with
IFRS 10. The amendments also clarify that the requirement for an investment entity to consolidate a
subsidiary providing services related to the former’s investment activities applies only to subsidiaries
that are not investment entities themselves.

The management of the Group does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as the Group is
not the investment entity and does not have holding companies, subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures satisfying the definition of the investment entity.

Amendments to IAS 27 - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

The amendments to IAS 27 allows entities to apply the equity method as one of the option for
accounting for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements. The amendments are effective from 1 January 2016 with earlier application permitted.
The management of the Group does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the
future may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company as
separate financial statements are not prepared.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include the following amendments to various
IFRSs.

The amendments to IFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in IFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies
an asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners (or vice versa). The
amendments clarify that such a change should be considered as a continuation of the original plan of
disposal and hence requirements set out in IFRS 5 regarding the change of sale plan do not apply.
The amendments also clarifies the guidance for when held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued.

The amendments to IFRS 7 provide additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is

continuing involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures required in relation to
transferred assets.
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The amendments to IAS 34 clarify that information required by IAS 34 that is provided elsewhere within
the interim financial report but outside the interim financial statements should be incorporated by way of
a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the other part of the interim financial report
that is available to users on the same terms and at the same time as the interim financial statements.

The management of the Group does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the
future may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which have been described in Note 3, management
is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, including,

but not limited to, the uncertainties and ambiguities of the Russian legal and taxation systems and
the difficulties in securing contractual rights as defined in contracts. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Significant estimates and assumptions
Inventory valuation

Management reviews the inventory balances to determine if inventories can be sold at amounts greater
than or equal to their carrying amounts plus costs to sell. This review includes identification of slow
moving inventories, obsolete inventories and partially or fully damaged inventories. The identification
process includes historical performance of the inventory, current operational plans for the inventory as
well as industry and customer specific trends. Damaged stock is either provided for or written off
depending on the extent of damage. Management makes an allowance for any items considered to
be obsolete. The allowance represents the difference between the cost of inventory and its estimated
net realizable value.

The net realizable value allowance is calculated using the following methodology:

. Stock held for resale — comparison of expected selling price versus the carrying value on
a stock keeping unit basis;

. Damaged goods — examination of historical data relating to discounts associated with damaged
goods and comparison to book value at the balance sheet date;

. Stock held at service centers — an allowance is applied based on management’s estimate of
the carrying value of the inventory and based on historical data on sales of respective inventories;

. Additional allowance is accrued if there is actual evidence of a decline in selling prices after the
end of the reporting period to the extent that such decline confirms conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period.

If actual results differ from management’s expectations with respect to the selling of inventories at
amounts equal to or less than their carrying amounts, management would be required to adjust
the carrying amount of inventories.
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Tax and customs provisions and contingencies

The Group is subject to various taxes arising in the Russian Federation. The majority of its
merchandise is imported into Russian Federation and is therefore subject to the Russian customs
regulations. Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes and other
taxes. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether it is
probable that additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the amount of tax and tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Assessment of lease term

At the inception or modification of each operating lease agreement the Group assesses non-cancellable
lease period. During the assessment the Group considers legal factors (the right to cancel the lease
before the end of the lease period and the renewal option) and economic factors (financial and
non-financial, such as revenue growth rates, profitability, strategic importance of location).

The assessment requires exercise of the management’s judgment. Once determined, the non-
cancellable lease period is used in the calculation of lease payments to be recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis as well as in the estimation of depreciation period of leasehold
improvements which cannot exceed the non-cancellable lease period of the relevant premises.

Determination of a portion of lease payments that does not represent a payment for the use of
premises

As disclosed in Note 3, for the lease agreements which stipulate that payments for reimbursement of
maintenance costs incurred by the lessor are embedded in the fixed periodic lease payments,

the Group performs a calculation of such costs to be recognized as current period expense on

an agreement-by-agreement basis. The calculation is performed based on amounts of factual
maintenance costs incurred on similar leases for comparable premises where the amounts of
maintenance costs are clearly stated in the documents. Where possible, comparable premises are
selected within the same city or region.

Revenue attributed to loyalty programs

The Group accounts for customer loyalty points as a separate component of the sale transaction in
which they are granted. A portion of a fair value of the consideration received from customers is
allocated to the award points and deferred, and is recognized then as a revenue over the period that
the award credits are redeemed. Therefore, management has to make assumptions about expected
redemption rates, which are subject to availability of prior periods’ statistics and significant uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, as far as issued points are expired through the passage of time in the future.

Supplier bonuses

The Group receives various types of bonuses from suppliers in the form of cash payments or allowances
for various programs, primarily volume incentives and reimbursements for specific programs such as
markdowns, margin protection and advertising. Management has concluded that substantially all payments
from suppliers are accounted for as a reduction of inventory purchases and recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the related inventory is sold.
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6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

Construc-
tion in
progress
and
Leasehold equipment
improve- to be Trade Security  Other fixed
Buildings ments installed equipment equipment assets Total
Cost
As at 31 December 2013 5450 4 620 97 3759 1284 2719 17 929
Additions - - 2766 - - - 2766
Transfers 37 428 (2 679) 1084 280 850 -
Disposals (273) (98) - (160) (42) (232) (805)
As at 31 December 2014 5214 4950 184 4683 1522 3337 19 890
Additions - - 1348 - - 1348
Transfers 6 133 (1298) 505 119 535 -
Disposals - (108) - (137) (24) (334) (603)
As at 31 December 2015 5220 4975 234 5051 1617 3538 20 635
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
As at 31 December 2013 1436 2445 - 1859 930 1563 8 233
Charge for the year 251 568 - 641 220 579 2 259
Disposals (92) (70) - (141) (40) (223) (566)
Recognition of impairment loss - 12 - 13 1 3 29
As at 31 December 2014 1595 2 955 - 2372 1111 1922 9 955
Charge for the year 260 541 - 769 222 590 2382
Disposals - (102) - (128) (23) (329) (582)
As at 31 December 2015 1855 3394 - 3013 1310 2183 11 755
Net book value
As at 31 December 2014 3619 1995 184 231 411 1415 9 935
As at 31 December 2015 3 365 1581 234 2038 307 1355 8 880

Depreciation expenses have been included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” (Note 21).

Assets related to the closed stores with net book value of 21 were disposed off by the Group in the
year ended 31 December 2015 (in the year ended 31 December 2014: 239). Loss on disposal of

these items of 21 (2014: 99) was recorded within other operating expenses (Note 23).
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7.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

Cost
As at 31 December 2013

Additions
Disposals

As at 31 December 2014

Additions
Disposals

As at 31 December 2015

Accumulated amortization
As at 31 December 2013

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31 December 2014

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31 December 2015

Net book value
As at 31 December 2014

As at 31 December 2015

Software
licenses,
development

and web site Trademarks Total

4230 25 4 255
1640 1 1641
(503) - (503)
5 367 26 5393
1507 6 1513
(260) (260)
6614 32 6 646
1056 9 1065
518 3 521
(503) - (503)
1071 12 1083
846 3 849
(260) - (260)
1657 15 1672
4 296 14 4310
4 957 17 4974

During 2015 the Group incurred expenditures in the total amount of 1 513 which for the most part
related to the development of the new front-office / back-office system, the new web site platform

and additional functionality of the Group’s ERP system SAP R\3.

Amortization expenses have been included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” (Note 21).

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group had commitments for the technical support of software

licenses (Note 29).
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8. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other non-current assets as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014

Long-term advances paid for rent 540 581
Advances paid for non-current assets 85 49
Long-term loans and notes receivable 37 38
Long-term part of warranty asset — in respect of Additional Service

Agreements (ASA, sold prior to 1 October 2011) - 1
Less: allowance for doubtful long-term advances paid for rent (13) (33)
Total 649 636

Movement in the allowance for doubtful long-term advances paid for rent is as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 33 36
Impairment losses recognized on long-term advances paid for rent 1 11
Amounts recovered during the year (2) (4)
Amounts written off as uncollectible (19) (10)
Balance at the end of the year 13 33

9. INVENTORIES

Inventories as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014
Goods for resale 45 294 36 079
Other inventories 182 215
Less: allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories (1563) (860)
Total 43913 35434

Cost of inventories recognized as an expense in the amount of 118 880 and 123 173 and inventory
losses net of surpluses in the amount of 395 and 284 for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, respectively, were recorded within cost of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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10. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID EXPENSES

Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the

following:
2015 2014

Bonuses receivable from suppliers 8 360 9777
Other accounts receivable 1280 644
Advances paid to suppliers and prepaid expenses 656 515
Advances paid to related parties (Note 26) 15 7
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and prepaid expenses (150) (73)
Total 10 161 10 870

As at 31 December 2015 the Group recognized accounts receivable from suppliers for advertising
materials placed in the Group’s stores within “bonuses receivable from suppliers” in accounts
receivable and prepaid expenses. Previously these receivables were recognized within “other
accounts receivable”. With this regard the Group made the following reclassifications to the prior
period’s amounts to conform to the presentation of the current reporting period: accounts receivable
from suppliers for advertising materials placed in the Group’s stores in the amount of 352 were
excluded from “other accounts receivable” and included in “bonuses receivable from suppliers” within
accounts receivable and prepaid expenses.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group did not have accounts receivable past due but not
impaired.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and prepaid expenses is as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 73 66
Impairment losses recognized on accounts receivable 172 63
Amounts recovered during the year (10) (19)
Amounts written off as uncollectible (85) (37)
Balance at the end of the year 150 73

The accounts receivable impaired as at 31 December 2015 were aged 120+ days (31 December 2014:
120+ days).

In determining the recoverability of accounts receivable the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of receivables and prepaid expenses from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date. Details about concentration of credit risk and related management activities are provided in
Note 30.

11. OTHER TAXES RECEIVABLE

Other taxes receivable as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014
VAT recoverable 2 861 1098
Other taxes receivable 3 2
Total 2 864 1100
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12

13.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014
Short-term bank deposits 8 663 23433
Cash at banks 1429 985
Cash in transit 1295 1342
Petty cash and cash in stores 392 362
Total 11779 26 122

Cash at banks as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 includes the amounts of 125 and 336, respectively,
collected by the Group from its customers for further transfer through “Rapida” payment system. The
Group cannot use this cash in its operating activities as it is due to be transferred to the recipients.

Cash in transit represents acquiring and cash collected from the Group’s stores and not yet
deposited into the bank accounts at the year end.

Breakdown of short-term bank deposits as at 31 December 2015 is presented in the table:

Interest rate Maturity 2015
January-March
Short-term bank deposits in RUB 3,42%-11,5% 2016 8 580
Short-term bank deposits in USD 0,75% February 2016 83
Total 8 663

As at 31 December 2014 all short-term bank deposits denominated in RUB, USD and EUR earned
interest ranging from 11,90% to 24,50%, from 3,40% to 3,60% and 3,15% per annum respectively.
The short-term deposits matured in January-March 2015.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

Interest rate Maturity 2015 2014
Short-term bank deposits in RUB 10,44% March 2016 500 -
Short-term bank deposits in RUB 10,30% March 2016 300 -
Total 800 -
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14. EQUITY
Share capital

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Company had the following number of authorized, issued and
outstanding ordinary shares:

Outstanding Issued Authorized
ordinary shares ordinary shares ordinary shares

Balance as at 31 December 2014 178 263 237 179 768 227 209 768 227
Shares granted to participants of LTIP 3 (Note 26) 1268 000 - -
Balance as at 31 December 2015 179 531 237 179 768 227 209 768 227

Each share has par value of 10 RUB per share. During 2015 and 2014 there were no changes in the
number of authorized and issued ordinary shares of the Company. All issued ordinary shares were fully
paid.

The balance of outstanding ordinary shares increased for the number of the shares granted to
employees under the second tranche of Long-term incentive plan Series 3 (LTIP 3) in April 2015
(Note 26).

Additional paid-in capital

Additional paid-in capital consists of share premium which is the excess between proceeds from
issuance of 30 000 000 additional ordinary shares issued at 1 November 2007 and their par value, less
share issuance costs and related current and deferred income tax amounts.

Treasury shares

In September 2010 following the approval by the Board of Directors, the Group purchased

2 700 000 issued ordinary shares of the Company to be subsequently offered to the members

of the Long-term incentive plan Series 3 (“LTIP 3”) (Note 26) in order to service the resulting
subscription rights, for total cash consideration of 588. Of them 1 195 010 shares were transferred to
the participants of LTIP 3 Part 1 upon exercise of the options in April 2013 and 1 268 000 shares were
transferred to the participants of LTIP 3 Part 2 upon exercise of the options in April 2015. Accordingly,
the amount of treasury shares of 52 reported as at 31 December 2015 corresponds to the remaining
236 990 shares held as treasury shares at cost.

Dividends declared

On 16 June 2015 the Annual General Meeting approved dividends of 27 RUB per share in respect of
2014.

Dividends attributable to the treasury shares were eliminated in full for the purpose of these
consolidated financial statements. After the approval, dividends payable to the holders of outstanding
ordinary shares of the Company were recognized as a reduction of shareholders’ equity in these
consolidated financial statements in the total amount of 4 848, including related taxes accrued.
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15. INCOME TAX

The Group’s income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

2014
2015 (Restated)

Current tax
Current tax expense in respect of the current year (1.920) (3.106)

(1 920) (3 106)
Deferred tax
Deferred tax benefit recognized in the current year 472 581

472 581

Total income tax expense recognized in the current year (1 448) (2 525)

The tax effect on the major temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013 is presented below:

2014 2013
2015 (Restated) (Restated)
Deferred tax assets
Supplier bonuses allocated to inventories 1246 934 955
Accrued expenses 1065 965 584
Deferred revenue and prepayments received for
goods 410 566 387
Salary-related accruals 324 291 174
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventories 313 172 303
Difference in depreciable value of property,
plant and equipment 289 212 120
Allowance for doubtful long-term advances paid
for rent, accounts receivable and prepaid
expenses 33 21 20
Other items 43 34 33
Total 3723 3195 2 576
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in depreciable value of intangible
assets 167 111 72
Other items - - 1
Total 167 111 73
Deferred tax assets, net 3 556 3084 2 503

As at 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013 the Group measured deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities using tax rate of 20%, which is the rate expected to be applied in the period in which the asset
is realized or the liability is settled.
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The taxation charge for the year is different from that which would be obtained by applying the statutory
income tax rate to the profit before income tax expense. Below is a reconciliation of theoretical income
tax expense at the statutory rate of 20% effective for 2015 and 2014 to the actual expense recorded in
the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

2015 2014
(Restated)
Profit before tax 5995 10 699
Income tax expense calculated at 20% (1199) (2 140)
Effect of expenses/(income) that are not deductible in determining
taxable profit:

Inventory losses (126) (89)
Loss on conversion of cash into foreign currency (Note 23) - (61)
Change in provision for taxes other than income tax (Note 29) 60 (60)
Other non-deductible expenses, net (183) (175)
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss (1 448) (2 525)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 there were no taxable temporary differences related to investments
in subsidiary for which deferred tax liabilities might have been recognized if the Group had not been in

a position to control the timing of the reversal of these temporary.

16. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Other payables and accrued expenses as at 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the
following:
2014 2013
2015 (Restated) (Restated)
Rent and utilities 4012 3757 2130
Salaries and bonuses 1095 1224 807
Other current liabilities related to purchase of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets 730 556 545
Other current liabilities to related parties (Note 27) 17 96 31
Other 692 695 700
Total 6 546 6 328 4213
As at 31 December 2015 accounts payable and accruals for rent and utilities included accrued
liabilities for lease payments calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease term in the amount of
3 515 (31 December 2014: 3 102, 31 December 2013: 1 743).
17. ADVANCES RECEIVED

Advances received as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014
Prepayments received for goods (i) 1276 3441
Advances received for gift cards 701 884
Other advances received 92 97
Total 2 069 4422

0]
customers at the reporting date. These relate mostly to online sales and goods
delivery.

Prepayments received for goods represent cash received for goods which have not yet been delivered to

sold in stores for future
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18. OTHER TAXES PAYABLE

Other taxes payable as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014
VAT payable 508 787
Payroll taxes 287 505
Other taxes payable 39 96
Total 834 1388

19. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014
Customer Customer
loyalty Other Additional loyalty Other Additional
programs programs services programs programs services
As at 1 January 1201 1131 2637 788 1146 2621
Revenue deferred during the period 5995 2070 1650 5 865 2 501 2033
Revenue released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (5 856) (2 133) (1.894) (5 452) (2516) (2017)
As at 31 December 1340 1 068 2 393 1201 1131 2 637

Other programs represent primarily granting of gift cards to the Group’s customers.

20. REVENUE

Revenue for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014
Retail revenue 157 944 168 310
Additional services revenue 1894 2017
Other services 1853 2 385
Total 161 691 172712

Retail revenue includes sales of goods in stores, pick-up in stores, internet home-delivery and
commission fees.

Other services include revenue from services of installation, digital assistant, utilization and delivery.
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21. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
consisted of the following:

2014
2015 (Restated)
Payroll and related taxes (including share-based payments — Note 26) 10 089 11048
Lease expenses, net of income from sublease (2015: 30; 2014: 33) 8 054 8812
Advertising and promotional expenses, net 3640 3923
Depreciation, amortization and impairment loss 3231 2 809
Maintenance and other property operating costs 1904 1833
Warehouse services 1489 1915
Bank charges 1121 1283
Repairs and servicing 985 940
Utilities 936 982
Security 880 971
Consulting services 862 712
Communication 320 353
Taxes other than income tax 193 234
(Release)/accrual of provisions for taxes other than income tax (Note 29) (300) 300
Other expenses 1192 1122
Total 34 596 37 237

Payroll and related taxes for the year ended 31 December 2015 include 1 489 contribution to the
state pension fund (2014: 1 656) and social and medical insurance in the amount of 579 (2014: 602).

During 2015 the Group received 366 from its suppliers as a compensation of advertising and
promotional expenses (2014: 278).

Starting 1 January 2015 the Group recognizes outsourcing expenses and remuneration of the Board
of Directors within the “other expenses” line of selling, general and administrative expenses. With
this regard the Group made the following reclassifications to the prior period’s amounts to conform to
the presentation of the current reporting period: payroll and related taxes were decreased by 36 with
regards to remuneration of the Board of Directors, consulting services were decreased by 172 with
regard to outsourcing expenses, other expenses were increased by 208 respectively.

Starting 1 January 2015 the Group recognizes expenses related to the lease of warehouses within
the “lease expenses, net of income from sublease” line of selling, general and administrative
expenses and presents maintenance and other property operating costs within the separate line of
selling, general and administrative expenses. With this regard the Group made the following
reclassifications to the prior period’s amounts to conform to the presentation of the current reporting
period: expenses related to the lease of warehouses in the amount of 355 were excluded from
“warehouse services” and included in “lease expenses, net of income from sublease” within selling,
general and administrative expenses, maintenance and other property operating costs were
excluded from “lease expenses, net of income from sublease” in the amount of 1 005, “warehouse
services” in the amount of 105 and “utilities” in the amount of 723 and included in “maintenance and
other property operating costs” within selling, general and administrative expenses in total amount of
1 833.

22. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 includes commissions
received from banks on loans provided to customers, income earned from suppliers for advertising
materials placed in the Group’s stores, non-commission income from mobile operators, income from
lease of commercial space owned by the Group and other items.
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23.

24,

25.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015 include charity expense of 49 (2014:
43), expense on corporate events in amount of 43 (2014: 31), loss of 1 (2014: 306) arising from
conversion of cash in Russian Rubles into foreign currencies at bank rates different from the Central Bank
of the Russian Federation official exchange rate, loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment of 21
(2014: 99) and other individually insignificant items.

FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Finance income/(expenses), net for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 consisted of the
following:

2015 2014
Interest income on bank deposits 884 436
Interest expense on bank loans (191) (68)
Exchange loss from revaluation of investments (i) (297) -
Total 396 368

(i)  On 30 January 2015 the Group placed foreign currency deposits with banks in the amount of USD 16 million
and EUR 5 million with maturity on 29 January 2016. The interest rates on these deposits were 5,55% and
4,70% respectively. These deposits were withdrawn in June 2015 ahead of their maturities. Foreign
exchange loss incurred on these deposits was 297.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during

the year plus weighted average number of ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations:

2015 2014

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 4 547 8174
Weighted average number of ordinary share in issue (millions of shares) 179,25 178,26
Effect of share options granted to employees (millions of shares) 0,29 1,28
Basic earnings per share (in Russian rubles) 25,37 45,85
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted

earnings per share (millions of shares) 179,53 179,53
Diluted earnings per share (in Russian rubles) 25,33 45,53
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group had one equity-settled share option
plan — Long-term incentive plan Series 3 — in operation and adopted cash-settled share option plan —
Long-term incentive plan Series 4.

Long-term incentive plan Series 3 (LTIP 3)

On 9 December 2009 the Board of Directors approved the adoption of Series 3 of the LTIP for selected
members of the Group’s management team. 56 positions were enrolled in the plan and 3 170 000 of
the shares were designated for LTIP 3. The shares will be granted by the Group to the participants of
the plan at the appropriate vesting dates provided that the participants are employed to exercise their
right unless the Board of Directors waives this condition. Consideration given to this non-market vesting
condition requires the management to estimate the number of shares that will eventually vest and to
adjust accordingly the number of shares included in the measurement of the transaction amount.
Based on existed accumulated data on staff turnover at the moment of approval of LTIP 3 the
management best estimate of the number of shares eventually expected to vest was 2 615 010.

On 25 March 2015 the Board of Directors approved the amendments to LTIP 3 stipulating increase
in the number of options by 10% from 1 April 2015 at the expense of forfeited options of previous
participants. The number of options additionally granted to the existing participants totaled 116 000.
Additionally granted options were classified as equity-settled options and accounted for at fair value
of 28 in consolidated financial statements based on estimation of average market share price at the
date of exercise of LTIP 3.

Summary of the arrangements in existence as at 31 December 2015 and 2014

The following table contains details of the arrangements that were in existence as at 31 December
2015 and 2014:

Number of  Number of

options options
as at as at Fair value at
31 December 31 December Grant Exercise grant date
Option series 2015 2014 date Vesting date Expiry date price (RUB) (RUB)
LTIP 3
9 December 1 April 30 April
Issued 9 December 2009 - 1160 000 2009 2015 2015 - 118,49

Movements in share options during the period

The following reconciles the outstanding share options granted under LTIP 3 at the beginning and
end of the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014:

LTIP 3

Weighted

Number of average
options exercise price

expected to vest (RUB)

Balance as at 1 January 2014 1395 000 -
Forfeited during the period (235 000) -
Balance as at 31 December 2014 1160 000 -
Balance as at 1 January 2015 1160 000 -
Forfeited during the period (8 000) -
Granted during the period 116 000 -
Exercised during the period (1268 000) -

Balance as at 31 December 2015 - -
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On 7 April 2015 LTIP 3 participants exercised the second tranche, and 1 268 000 shares were granted
to option holders. The transaction was reflected as decrease in treasury shares for 276 in
correspondence with retained earnings account.

Fair value of share options

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted under LTIP 3 and outstanding as at
31 December 2014 was as follows (in RUB):

31 December
Option series 2014

LTIP 3 118,49

Options were evaluated at grant date using the Black-Scholes pricing model. Where relevant,

the model has reflected management’s best estimate of the future volatility of the Company’s share
price, expected dividend yield, risk-free interest rates and expected staff turnover. Management
draws upon a variety of external sources to aid in the determination of the appropriate data to use in
such situations.

LTIP 3 share

options vesting
Inputs into the model at grant date on 1 April 2015
Grant date share price, RUB 122,27
Exercise price, RUB -
Expected volatility 123,55%
Option life (years) 5
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 7,5%

The expected volatility was determined based on the ending weekly share price for the period from
1 November 2007 to 9 December 2009. The expected volatility is equal to the historical volatility due
to the brief history of trading activity and lack of comparable industry data.

Long-term incentive plan - Series 4 (“LTIP 4”)

On 25 March 2015 the Group’s Board of Directors approved LTIP 4 for 49 members of the management
team for the period of 2015-2019 with the grant date being 1 April 2015.

The plan stipulates three awards based on results for 2014, 2015 and 2016. The awards will vest if:

d the Group meets EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization) targets
established at the beginning of each year;

. the plan participants hold their employment within the Group.

Each award is to be paid in tranches during 2016-2019. The settlement will be made in cash where
the amount of each payment is to be calculated based on the quantity of shares allocated to particular
participants within each tranche, and average share price of the Company calculated for the week
preceding the payment. The Group classified LTIP 4 as cash-settled share-based payment and
consequently recognized a liability in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015 at its fair value.
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The fair value of liability was calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model. Where relevant, the
model reflected management’s best estimate of the expected dividend yield, expected staff turnover
and other. At 31 December 2015 the fair value of liability to the participants of LTIP 4 was 138. Short-
term portion of liability being 71 was reflected within “Other payables and accrued expenses” and the
long-term portion being 67 — within “Other long-term liabilities”.

Number of
shares
equivalents
granted to
participants
Balance as at 1 January 2015 -
Granted during the period 1280 000
Forfeited during the period (20 000)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 1260 000
The detailed information on awards outstanding as at 31 December 2015 is as follows:
Expected
Expected Number of number of
number of plan shares shares
participants equivalents equivalents Fair value as at
at the vesting granted to at the vesting Exercise price 31 December
Awards under LTIP 4  Vesting date date (i) participants date (i) (RUB) 2015
Award 1
Tranche 1 April 2016 48 315 000 315 000 - 71
Tranche 2 April 2017 42 265 000 230 000 - 24
Tranche 3 April 2018 4 50 000 40 000 - 2
Award 2
Tranche 1 April 2017 42 315000 270 000 - 28
Tranche 2 April 2018 36 265 000 200 000 - 12
Tranche 3 April 2019 3 50 000 30 000 - 1
Total 1260 000 1085 000 - 138

(i) Estimated based on historical data on staff turnover.
Share-based payments expense

The summary of expenses recognized by the Group in respect of share-based payments in the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

For the year ended

31 December 31 December
Option series 2015 2014
LTIP 3 28 1
LTIP 4 138 -
Total 166 1

The above expense has been included into “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the line

item “Payroll and related taxes” (Note 21).
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27. RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include shareholders, key management, entities under common ownership and
control, entities under control of key management personnel and entities over which the Group has
significant influence.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with
related parties for the relevant financial year and the outstanding balances owed by / to related
parties as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, respectively:

2015 31 December 2015 2014 31 December 2014
Purchases Amounts Amounts Purchases Amounts Amounts
Sales to from owed by owed to Sales to from owed by owed to
related related related related related related related related

parties parties parties parties parties parties parties parties

Entities under common
control (except otherwise

noted)
Transservice Group of

Companies (i) - 301 15 - - 357 7 62
LLC “Private Security Agency

Bars-SB” (ii) 2 282 - 8 2 264 - 5
Avtoritet Group of

Companies (iii) 1 60 - 6 1 86 - 20
LLC “Avto-Express” (iv) - 30 - 2 - 37 - 3
LLC "FAST-I" (v) - 10 - 1 - - - -
LLC “TechnoVideoService” (vi) - 9 - - - 11 - -
LLC “Noviy Format” (vii) - 2 - - - 30 - 6
CONplementation

International business

Consulting Vienna (viii) - - - - - 10 - -
LLC “MV. Stil” (ix) - - - - 1 - - -
Total 3 694 15 17 4 795 7 96

The nature of transactions with related parties is as follows:

(i) Transservice Group of Companies — provides after sale and other servicing of the Group’s
merchandise;

(i) LLC “Private Security Agency Bars-SB” — provides store and head office security services;

(iii) Avtoritet Group of Companies — provides rental services;

(iv) LLC “Avto-Express” — provides a car leasing service to the Group and logistic services;

(v) LLC “FAST-I" — provides redecoration and network repair services in the central office and
shops located in Moscow;

(vi) LLC “TechnoVideoService” — provides home appliances installation services;

(vii) LLC “Noviy Format” — provides rental services;

(viii) CONplementation International business Consulting Vienna — provides consulting services to
LLC “M.video Management’. The entity is under control of key management personnel;

(ix) LLC “MV. Stil” — acquires rental services from the Group.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Related parties may enter into transactions, which unrelated parties might not, and transactions
between related parties may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as
transactions between unrelated parties. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and
settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
accounts receivable or payable. Impairment of accounts receivable relating to amounts owed by
related parties has been recorded in the amount of 9 for the year ended 31 December 2015 (for the
year ended 31 December 2014: 0). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

2015 2014
Short-term benefits* 421 368
Share-based payments** 69 -
Total 490 368

* Short-term benefits include salaries, bonuses and annual leave, medical and relocation expenses.
** Amounts relate to the participation of the key management personnel in the incentive program posted in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (Note 26).

As at 31 December 2015 there were outstanding payables of 175 to key management personnel
(2014: 74).

The number of key management positions was 14 in 2015 (2014: 15).

The Group did not provide any material post-employment or other long-term benefits to key
management personnel during the period other than those disclosed in Note 26, contributions to the
state pension fund and the social funds as a part of payments of social security contributions on
salaries and bonuses. Social security contributions paid relating to compensation of key management
personnel amounted to 38 for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 21) and is included in the
amounts stated above.

28. OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Group enters into long-term leases for the stores for the periods from 1 to 20 years. Some of
these leases are not able to be fully registered and thus legally enforceable until the landlord is able
to produce all valid ownership papers and therefore are arranged as 11-month rolling leases; at the
same time some of the long-term lease contracts contain cancellation clauses and some of the short-
term lease contracts contain prolongation clauses. As discussed in Note 5, for each lease the Group
assesses non-cancellable lease term based on both legal and economic conditions which can have
an impact on the Group’s future decisions on exercising its cancelation rights or its rights to renew
the contract.

Certain lease contracts stipulate terms requiring the Group to pay the higher of minimum lease
payments or a percentage of revenue. The amounts paid in excess of the minimum lease payments
are disclosed as contingent rentals below. The Group does not have an option to purchase the leased
premises at the expiration of the lease period.

Payments recognized as an expense

2015 2014
Minimum lease payments 7519 8272
Contingent rentals 565 573
Total 8 084 8 845
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29.

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Future minimum rentals payable during non-cancellable term of operating leases for premises
occupied as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014
Within one year 7 652 7794
After one year but not more than five years 26 598 26 399
More than five years 17 934 19 579
Total 52 184 53772

Future minimal rental payments will be subject to VAT.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating environment

The Group sells products that are sensitive to changes in general economic conditions that impact
consumer spending. Future economic conditions and other factors, including consumer confidence,
employment levels, interest rates, consumer debt levels and availability of consumer credit could reduce
consumer spending or change consumer purchasing habits. A recent downturn in the Russian economy
and general slowdown in the global economy, or an uncertain economic outlook, could adversely affect
consumer spending habits and the Group’s operating results.

Emerging markets such as Russia are subject to different risks than more developed markets,
including economic, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations
affecting businesses in Russia continue to change rapidly, tax and regulatory frameworks are subject
to varying interpretations. The future economic direction of Russia is heavily influenced by the fiscal
and monetary policies adopted by the government, together with developments in the legal,
regulatory, and political environment.

Because Russia produces and exports large volumes of oil and gas, its economy is particularly
sensitive to the price of oil and gas on the world market. During 2014-2015 and then in the first
quarter of 2016, the oil price decreased significantly, which led to substantial decrease of the
Russian Ruble exchange rate.

Starting from 2014, sanctions have been imposed in several packages by the U.S. and the E.U. on
certain Russian officials, businessmen and companies.

In the first quarter of 2015 two international credit agencies downgraded Russia’s long-term foreign
currency sovereign rating to the speculative level with the negative outlook.

The above mentioned events have led to reduced access of the Russian businesses to international
capital markets, increased inflation, economic recession and other negative economic
consequences. The impact of further economic developments on future operations and financial
position of the Group is at this stage difficult to determine.

Russian Federation tax and regulatory environment

The government of the Russian Federation continues to reform the business and commercial
infrastructure in its transaction to a market economy. As a result, laws and regulations affecting
business continue to change rapidly. These changes are characterized by unclear wording which leads
to different interpretations and arbitrary application by the authorities. Management’s interpretation of
such legislation as applied to the activity of the Group may be challenged by the relevant regional and
federal authorities.
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Recent events within the Russian Federation suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more
assertive position in their interpretation of the legislation and assessments and as a result, it is
possible that transactions and activities that have not been challenged in the past may be challenged.
It is therefore possible that significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed.
Fiscal periods remain open to tax audit by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar years
preceding the year of tax audit. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.
Management believes that it has accrued for all taxes that are applicable. Where uncertainty exists,
the Group has accrued tax liabilities as management’s best estimate of the probable outflow of
resources which will be required to settle such liabilities. Management believes that it has provided
adequately for tax liabilities based on its interpretations of tax legislation. However, the relevant
authorities may have differing interpretations, and the effects could be significant.

The Group obtains various types of supplier bonuses. Prior to 1 July 2013 the VAT legislation of the
Russian Federation provided no guidance with regards to the assessment and payment of VAT
related to bonuses from suppliers and the respective court practice was controversial. In April 2013
an amendment to the Tax Code was adopted in Russia with the purpose to clarify the VAT rules
going forward. The amendment is effective 1 July 2013 and does not apply retrospectively. The
Group believes that it has correctly interpreted the current tax legislation with regard to this issue in
accordance with the accepted industry practice both before and after 1 July 2013.

During 2014 the Group recognized an additional tax provision for VAT of 300 which was recorded
within Selling, General and Administrative expenses (Note 21) in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and in current provisions in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Having considered the results of the tax authorities’ audit for 2012-2013, which was
completed during the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group released the tax provision for VAT
of 300 in full in the current year. Respective income of 300 was included in Selling, General and
Administrative expenses (Note 21) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group has also identified possible tax contingencies for the two-year period ended 31 December
2015. Management has estimated that possible exposure in relation to such tax risks, if they were to
materialize, would not exceed half the amount of the Group’s profit before income tax expense.

Customs

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group purchased a significant portion of
its foreign manufactured goods on the territory of the Russian Federation from Russian legal entities,
including Russian wholesalers or resellers, which may or may not have imported the goods into

the Russian Federation directly. As the Group was not involved in clearing customs for the goods
purchased on the territory of the Russian Federation, management cannot be certain that the entities
which imported the goods into the Russian Federation were in full compliance with the applicable
regulations of the Russian customs code.

As described above in Russian Federation tax and regulatory environment section, the relevant
authorities may take a more assertive position in their interpretation of the applicable laws.

Under Russian law a company in possession of goods that were imported with proven violations of

the customs law may be subject to significant administrative or civil penalties and/or confiscation of

the goods, if it was involved in, aware of, or should have known that violation of the customs code were
occurring. To date, the Group has not been subject to any natification of violations of the customs code.

Management believes that the Group entities were acting in compliance with all applicable tax and legal
requirements in respect of imported products, were not involved, not aware and could not be expected to
know of any significant violations of the applicable customs code by the Russian wholesalers or resellers.
Accordingly, management did not recognize any provisions in respect of such contingencies in these
consolidated financial statements and determined that with current limitations in access to customs
clearance documents it is not practicable to estimate the likely potential financial effect, if any, of such
contingent liabilities.
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License agreements

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total commitment of approximately 147,8 — 172,2 million
RUB per annum for technical support services with respect to existing SAP licenses and software
during the period from 2015 to 2017 (31 December 2014: 135,5 — 172,2 million RUB).

The Group uses SAP software for finance, supply chain and human resources functions.
Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Group is subject to proceedings, lawsuits, and other claims.
While such matters are subject to other uncertainties, and outcomes are not predictable with
assurance, the management of the Group believes that any financial impact arising from these

matters would not be material to its financial position or annual operating results.

Environmental matters

The enforcement of environmental regulation in the Russian Federation is evolving and the enforcement

posture of government authorities is continually being reconsidered. The Group periodically evaluates

its environmental obligations. In the current enforcement climate under existing legislation, management

believes that there are no significant liabilities for environmental matters.

Financial guarantees

In the normal course of its operating activity the Group from time-to-time enters into financial guarantee

contracts with banks. Under these contracts banks provide guarantees in favour of the Group’s
suppliers and the Group may be required to pay under those contracts only if it fails to make timely

payments to its suppliers. As at 31 December 2015 the Group entered into such guarantee contracts

for the total amount of 3 660 (2014: 1 425). The Group has not pledged any assets (2014: none) as
collateral under these guarantee contracts.

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Generally the Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other

payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has trade and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from

its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s senior
management provides assurance to the Group’s Board of Directors that the Group’s financial risk-
taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity

balance. No changes were made in objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) and equity

attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued capital (less treasury shares),
additional paid in capital and retained earnings.
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The primary objective of the Group’s capital management program is to maximize shareholder value
while minimizing the risks associated with the loan portfolio. The consumer electronics business is

a cyclical business and as such requires short-term fluctuations in capital to purchase goods to satisfy
the seasonal demand. The Group uses a combination of short-term loans and supplier credit terms
to meet the seasonal capital needs. The store expansion program adds to the capital needs as the
capital and pre-opening costs associated with the new stores put additional pressure on the Group's
financial resources. While the Group has not established any formal policies regarding debt to equity
proportions the Group reviews its capital needs periodically to determine actions to balance its overall
capital structure through shareholders’ capital contributions or new share issues, return of capital to
shareholders as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities grouped by each category of financial instruments
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014
Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 22 106 36 508
Financial liabilities
Liabilities carried at amortized cost 61193 60 654

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the financial results of the Group will be adversely impacted by
changes in exchange rates to which the Group is exposed. The Group’s exposures to foreign currency
risk arise from cash and cash equivalents held in US Dollars and Euro as well as from lease payments
tied-in to currencies other than functional currency. At 31 December 2015 approximately 32%

(at 31 December 2014: 31%) of the Group’s operating lease agreements for stores and warehouses
were tied-in to either US Dollars or Euro and these contracts accounted for approximately 49% (2014:
46%) of the Group’s operating lease expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Group
minimizes, to the extent possible, the risk arising from foreign currency-denominated lease contracts
by negotiating a fixed exchange rate or a cap for an exchange rate with the lessors.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group did not use forward exchange
contracts to eliminate the currency exposures.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

US Dollar Euro
2015 2014 2015 2014

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 84 1074 7 346
Total assets 84 1074 7 346
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals for

operating leases (shown within

other accounts payable)* (1.849) (1.363) (338) (276)
Total liabilities (1 .849) (1.363) (338) (276)
Total net position (1.765) (289) (331) 70

* Although accrued liabilities for lease payments calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease term do not
represent financial instruments they have been included in the table above since they subject the Group to
foreign currency risk.
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

As mentioned above, the Group is mainly exposed to changes in the exchange rates of the US
Dollar and Euro. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 30% (31 December 2014:
20%) change of the Russian Ruble against these two currencies. As at 31 December 2015 the
sensitivity rate of 30% represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at year end and adjusts their translation for a movement in foreign
currency exchange rates. Positive numbers below indicate an increase in profit and respective increase
in equity where the Russian Ruble appreciates against the relevant currency. For a depreciation of the
Russian Ruble against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on profit

and equity.
uUsD EUR
Changes in Effect on profit Changes in Effect on profit
exchange rate, before income exchange rate, before income
% tax % tax
2015 +30% (530) +30% (99)
-30% 530 -30% 99
uUsD EUR
Changes in Effect on profit Changes in Effect on profit
exchange rate, before income  exchange rate, before income
% tax % tax
2014 +20% (58) +20% (14)
-20% 58 -20% 14

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Management believes that this risk is not significant
because as at 31 December 2015 the Group does not have any borrowings or other financial liabilities
bearing floating interest rates (31 December 2014: none).

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty may default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. Financial assets which are potentially subject the Group to credit risk
consist primarily of bonuses receivable from suppliers, other receivables, short-term investments as
well as cash on current and deposit accounts with banks and other financial institutions.

Bonuses receivable from suppliers are either offset against respective accounts payable or paid in
cash. At 31 December 2015 bonuses receivable from three major suppliers comprised 43% of the
Group’s consolidated accounts receivable and prepaid expenses (31 December 2014: 42%). The
Group believes no significant credit risk is associated with these receivables since all of the debtors
are represented by the Group’s major suppliers.

The credit risk on liquid funds (see the table below) is managed by the Group’s treasury. The management

believes that credit risk on investments of surplus funds is limited as the counterparties are financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.
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The table below shows the balances that the Group had with 5 of its major counterparties as at
31 December 2015 and 2014:

Carrying amount

Counterparty Currency Rating 2015 2014

VTB RUB Ba2 4201 4106
Alfa-bank RUB Ba2 3899 9 394
Sberbank RUB Ba2 2 657 10 859
Gazprombank RUB Ba2 - 388
Credit Bank of Moscow RUB B1 - 28
Nonbanking credit company Rapida RUB - 1 -
Total 10 758 24 775

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,
which is net of impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk. There
were no other concentrations of credit risk as at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: none).

Liquidity risk management

The Group’s treasury monitors the risk of a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets (e.g. accounts
receivable, other financial assets) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans. Each year the Group analyses its funding needs and anticipated cash
flows, so that it can determine its funding obligations. The seasonality of the business, the store
expansion plan, capitalized projects and the anticipated working capital requirements form the basis
of the evaluation. When necessary the Group uses long-term instruments (loans and borrowings)

to cover its base liquidity needs. The Group uses short-term loans and bank overdrafts to cover
seasonality needs. Every quarter the Group updates its liquidity needs and secures facilities with
several banks to ensure that the Group has a sufficient amount of approved undrawn borrowing
facilities.

As at 31 December 2015 the Group had obtained uncommitted standby borrowing facilities in the total
amount of 13 900 (31 December 2014: 11 000).

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
31 December 2015 and 2014 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Less than
As at 31 December 2015 3 months 3-12 months Total
Trade accounts payable 50 170 7 992 58 162
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 3031 - 3031
Total 53 201 7992 61193
Less than
As at 31 December 2014 3 months 3-12 months Total
Trade accounts payable 48 940 8 488 57 428
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 3 226 - 3 226
Total 52 166 8 488 60 654
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Fair value of financial instruments

Management consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 approximate
their fair values.

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After the balance sheet date no events have occurred which require disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements.
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